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Internal Controls 
In developing and evaluating the County's accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of the County's internal 
controls.  Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding: the safeguarding of 
assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial 
statements and maintaining accountability for assets.  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control 
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments 
by management. 
 
All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework.  We believe the County's internal accounting controls 
adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.  The County's 
internal controls are supported by written policies and procedures and are continually reviewed, evaluated, and modified to 
meet current needs. 
 
Departmental cash related procedures are reviewed at least annually to determine if there are adequate controls in place, such 
as separation of duties, appropriate documentation, proper authorizations, and required absences. The Public Services and 
Revenue’s auditor has made a concerted effort to gather written procedures that include enough detail to assess internal control 
strengths and weakness. Throughout the year, controls are monitored and reevaluated. Staff throughout the county are 
continually reminded of what internal controls are for and how they protect our honest and dedicated staff from accusations of 
impropriety. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and 
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This 
letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  Dakota County’s MD&A 
can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 
 
 
Profile of the Government 
 
Dakota County was organized in 1849 as a county in the State of Minnesota.  It has an area of 593 square miles,  including 13 
townships and 21 full and fractional incorporated municipalities.  The 2008 population was 390,478 making it the third most 
populous county in the State.  It is one of seven counties comprising the Twin Cities metropolitan area.  The county seat, 
Hastings, is located on the Mississippi River 18 miles southeast of the state capital, St. Paul. 
 
Dakota County operates under an elected seven-member County Board, each member representing a district of the County.  
The County Board is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, and the hiring of the 
County’s Administrator.  The County Administrator is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the County 
Board, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for appointing the heads of the various divisions and 
departments.  The County Board is elected on a non-partisan basis.  County Board members serve four-year staggered terms.   
 
The County provides a full range of services including public safety and law enforcement; probation services; tax assessment 
and collection; vital statistics and public records; health and human services; highways, parks, public works and planning; 
environmental management; and recreation and cultural services. 
 
Various potential component units were evaluated to determine whether they should be reported in the County’s financial 
report.  A component unit was considered part of the County’s reporting entity when it was concluded that the County was 
financially accountable for the entity or the nature and significance of the relationship between the County and the entity was 
such that exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.  Dakota County has one 
blended component unit, the Dakota County Regional Rail Authority (Authority).  The Authority was created pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes.  The Dakota County Board of Commissioners appoints the Authority’s seven-member board.  The Dakota 
County Community Development Agency (Agency) is a discretely presented component unit.  The Agency was established in 
1971 pursuant to special Minnesota legislation.  The Dakota County Board of Commissioners also appoints its seven-member 
board.  The Vermillion River Watershed Joint Powers Organization (VRW) is also a discretely presented component unit.  
VRW was established in 2002 for purposes set forth in Minn. Stat. §103B.201 within the geographic boundary of the 
Vermillion River watershed located in Dakota County and Scott County.  The Vermillion River Watershed Joint Powers 
Board consists of one county commissioner from Scott County and two county commissioners from Dakota County.   
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Budgetary Controls 
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Dakota County Government financial planning and control.  The County 
budgets at a more detailed level than required by Minnesota law or for federal programs.  Divisions and departments develop 
their budget requests to cover their clients’ needs, keeping in mind general guidelines set by the County Board of 
Commissioners.  The divisions and departments submit their budget requests to the County Administrator, who must balance 
the competing needs against available resources.  The County Board makes final adjustments to the budgets, which are then 
adopted and available for use on January 1 each year.   
 
Division and department managers are held responsible for their budget performance.  Authority for County staff to spend and 
amend the budget is identified in the Budget Compliance Policy, adopted in 1996.  Compliance with budgets is essential for 
the County to maintain its sound financial condition.  “Budget Accountability Points” are identified in the policy to inform 
managers at what level budget comparisons will be reported.  This allows managers authority to “mix and match” spending 
below the “Budget Accountability Points” to help achieve their desired outcomes.  The Budget Compliance Policy provides 
managers the ability to respond efficiently and effectively to changes up to $50,000 while leaving the County Board to 
concentrate its efforts on significant budget issues.   
 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the broader 
perspective of the specific environment within which the Dakota County Government operates. 
 
Key population, labor force and employment trends:  
 
• The County’s population change from 1990 to 2000 was an increase of 29.3%, exceeding the State’s 12.4% increase.  

Strong population growth in Dakota County is expected to continue, but at a slower rate.  The population is projected to 
grow to 429,160 in 2010, representing an increase of 20.6% for the decade (2000-2010), though recent data suggests the 
County will fall well short of that level. 

 
• Recent economic conditions have resulted in challenges for many residents of Dakota County.  Since 2001, the 

unemployment rate in Dakota County has generally increased, largely in line with both state and national unemployment 
trends.  Typically, the County’s unemployment rate is below both state and national numbers.  At the end of 2008, the 
State’s unemployment rate was 6.8% and the national unemployment rate was 7.1%.  Dakota County’s unemployment 
rate reached 6.1%, the highest percentage since 1990. 

 
• Incomes in Dakota County have continued to remain above the State of Minnesota average.  Between 2000 and 2007, 

median per capita income rose in Dakota County 25.8% from $27,008 in 2000 to $33,986 in 2007.  Median per capita 
income in the State increased by 25.1%, from $23,198 in 2000 to $29,027 in 2007.  One-third of households in Dakota 
county (33%) earned $100,000 or more in 2007, as compared with only 20% in 2000 and 6% in 1990.  For 2007, the 
median household income was $74,497. 

 
• People in Dakota County participate in the labor force in greater percentages than the national average.   In 2000, the 

percentage of Dakota County residents (over the age of 16) who participated in the labor force was 78.4%; that number 
dropped slightly to 77.2% in 2007, while in 2007 the national average was 65%. 

 
• The County’s adult education level in 2007 showed that 93.9% of the population (over the age of 25) had a high school 

degree or higher; 38.2% had a bachelor’s degree or higher. 
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 The above chart shows unemployment rates from 1999 through 2008.  Dakota County maintains a lower average 
unemployment rate than Minnesota and the U.S.   
 
Following is an analysis of non-agricultural wage and salary employment in Dakota County by industry: 
 
         Dakota County       Distribution % Change 2006-2007
    Avg Number of Employees Dakota State of  
 2006 2007 County Minnesota County State
Total, All Industries           174,699           176,409 100.0% 100.0% 2.1% 0.9%

Agricultural, Forestry, Fishing                  806                  799 0.5% 0.6% -0.9% 4.2%
Mining                  113                  136 0.1% 31.2% 16.9% 1.5%
Construction             11,943             11,685 6.7% 5.2% -2.2% 2.6%
Manufacturing             19,361             19,446 11.1% 13.2% 0.4% -0.5%
Utilities                  409                  412 0.2% 0.5% 0.7% -0.6%
Wholesale Trade              10,216             10,285 5.9% 5.0% 0.7% -0.3%
Retail Trade             22,463             22,899 13.1% 11.6% 1.9% 0.2%
Information               8,561               8,788 5.0% 2.5% 2.6% -0.2%
Finance, Insurance & Real 

Estate             11,706             11,917 6.8% 6.8% 1.8% 0.6%
Services             57,342             59,418 34.0% 40.9% 3.5% 1.6%
Other             28,023             28,914 16.6% 13.5% 3.1% 1.2%

       
Total, All Industries -- Government              17,989             18,594 10.6% 14.2% 3.3% 0.0%
Total, All Industries -- Private           152,954           156,105 89.4% 85.8% 2.0% 1.1%
 
 
Source: www.deed.state.mn.us 
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The following shows the increase and decrease in the value of construction permits in Dakota County over the last five years.  
The construction permits have been separated into five categories.   
 

Value of New Construction Permits Issued in the County (in thousands) 
  
 2004 2005 2006

 
2007 2008 

   Residential $855,043 $925,245 $746,442 $651,100 $350,166 
   Commercial 100,437 118,579 176,246 151,496 163,520
   Industrial 9,925 12,000 22,047 6,730 23,711
   Agricultural 6,101 7,350 3,732 3,454 2,087
   Apartments 58,388 65,517 23,281 29,049 11,786
 
   Total Value $1,029,894 $1,128,691 $971,748 $841,829 $551,270
  
Source:  Dakota County Assessor’s Office. 
 
 
Selected Major Developments in Dakota County 
 
City of Apple Valley 
 
In 2008, there were 7 permits issued totaling $12,559,000 for new commercial buildings including Apple Valley Liquor Store 
#3, Quarry Point Athletic Field Buildings, M&I Bank, Wells Fargo Bank, Discount Tires, Apple Valley Senior Center and 20 
units in Ecumen/Centennial Homes Care Center.  21 new single family homes total $5,480,000.  541 permits were issued in 
the amount of $2,986,000 for residential additions, alteration and/or remodeling.  875 permits were issued for reroofing and 
siding with a value of $1,250,000.  In all 3,017 total permits were issued with a total valuation of $30,292,500. 
 
City of Burnsville 
 
In 2008, new residential and commercial value equaled $51,026,927 and remodeling residential and commercial equaled 
$50,160,032 in added value.  There were 11 new commercial construction and 271 commercial remodeling permits. 
 
The Heart of the City projects completed or under construction to date are comprised of 363 completed  housing units with 
approval granted for an additional 226 units; however due to the current housing market it is not known when these units will 
be constructed.  In addition to the residential units, 31,370 square feet of office space, 136,958 square feet of retail space, and 
8,465 square feet of retail/office are complete.  The 1,000 seat, $20,000,000 Performing Arts Center (PAC) was completed and 
is now open.  Also in 2008, a 238 stall parking deck was constructed north of the PAC and 7,000 square foot restaurant is 
under construction on the north side of Nicollet Commons Park.  The City and CDA partnered to construct a 27 stall 
temporary parking lot northeast of Nicollet Avenue and 125th Street on land owned by the CDA. 
 
The City is continuing to respond to the needs of the development community.  Burnsville is over 98% developed and 
construction activity has shifted from a high volume of new residential units to an emphasis on residential remodeling, and 
commercial and industrial development and remodeling.  Planning and Economic Development staff must work with the 
Inspections Department to ensure that policies and procedures are in place to support this shift.  New residential construction 
permits have declined from 434 permits in 1993 to 12 in 2008.  Remodeling permits have increased from 374 in 1984 to 1,790 
in 2008.  For 2009, it is estimated that there will be 6 new single family and townhome units and 7 new commercial projects in 
Burnsville. 
 
City of Farmington 
 
In 2008 commercial projects consisted of several interior finishes, re-roofs and four new buildings; Farmington Mini Storage 
(2 new storage buildings), Allina Medical Clinic, and Anna’s Banana’s Daycare & Preschool.  A total of  907 building permits 
were issued with a total valuation of $18,378,725 ($11,737,600 residential and $4,318,116 commercial/industrial). 
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City of Eagan 
 
Due to the economic diversity and strength of many Eagan businesses, commercial and industrial construction activity 
continued at a relatively steady pace throughout 2008.  Despite the economic downturn, Eagan businesses invested over $25 
million in new construction or additions to existing facilities.  This is comparable to the investment growth experienced in 
2007 and marks a $5 million increase over 2006 valuations. 
 
New development for 2008 was highlighted by two new grocery store facilities constructed for Cub Foods and Kowalski’s 
along Diffley Road, and new in-line retail stores adjacent to each facility.  MSP Commercial is finishing a new 32,800 sq ft 
medical office facility at Town Centre and will be the home to a new Healtheast clinic and sleep center.  Superior Collision 
moved from its Cedar Grove location and completed a renovation and expansion of its new facility at Washington Drive.  
Other developments included new facilities for Final Coat Painting and the Postal Credit Union, an addition to Rasmussen 
Business School and major lease improvements for French Meadow Bakery and USPS. 
 
With the economic slowdown continuing through 2008 and limited available projects, the City of Eagan experienced a 
continued slowdown in new residential development with only 30 new permits issued in 2008.  However, the city experienced 
a significant increase in additions to existing homes, and a very large increase in exterior improvements due to storm damage. 
Both active redevelopment projects in Eagan continued to show progress toward ultimate development.  The City has acquired 
all but three properties in the core development area of the Cedar Grove Redevelopment District and continues to work with 
the Master Developer on concept design, phasing options, and land transfer agreements.  All land title in the Northeast 
Development District was transferred to the developer in 2008, and final platting and plan approval is now ready for 
anticipated first phase of the Blue Gentian Corporate Center. 
 
 

City of Inver Grove Heights 
 
The City experienced a steady amount of construction in 2008 and an increase in development and planning activities.  
Construction activity levels were similar to the last year or two, though less than some of the previous years.  Development 
activities increased with the approval of three major developments in the Northwest Area and there were considerable 
planning activities with the comprehensive plan update and other projects. 
 
Inver Grove Heights experienced $53 million of new construction in 2008, in comparison to $55 million in 2007 and $86 
million in 2006.  Total residential construction increased slightly from the previous two years.  2008 saw the construction of 
118 dwelling units, including 15 single family and 103 senior apartment units.    In comparison, 90 dwelling units were 
constructed in 2007 and 84 units were built in 2006.  The amount of commercial and industrial construction fell.  The City 
experienced $11 million of commercial and industrial construction in 2008, compared to $17 million in 2007 and $22 million 
in 2006.   Institutional construction was good with $10 million of construction compared to $4.5 million in 2007 and $24 
million in 2006.  The major construction projects in 2008 were Inver Glen senior apartments, Inver Hills Community College 
Fine Arts Building addition, Twin City Marina manufacturing building, and additional Acorn Mini-Storage storage buildings. 
Development activities increased significantly in 2008, especially in the northwest area.  With the extension of sanitary sewer 
and municipal water, the City considered and approved the 500,000 square foot United Properties industrial warehouse park, 
the 400,000 square foot MGT/Target retail center, and the 103 unit Inver Glen  senior apartments.   Though the United 
Properties and MGT/Target developments have not commenced building construction, they have installed millions of dollars 
of site improvements. 
 
Planning activities were a major effort in 2008.  A draft of the Comprehensive Plan was preliminarily adopted after 15 months 
of work and extensive public participation.  Efforts to identify necessary transportation improvements in the northwest area 
and means of financing and implementing them continued.  There were additional acquisitions in the Doffing Avenue 
Neighborhood to provide for a future community riverfront park.  There was also considerable discussion and analysis of the 
city’s economic development program.  Environmental investigation commenced on the Highway 52 Site, in anticipation of 
the possible acquisition of the state property and the marketing of it for office development. 
 
2009 is expected to see a decline in construction and development activities due to the national recession.  However, work will 
continue on numerous planning activities.  The Comprehensive Plan must be completed and adopted and various activities 
undertaken to implement the plan.  The Doffing Avenue Voluntary Acquisition Program, the Highway 52 site, housing issues, 
and economic development issues will also require significant efforts. 
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City of Lakeville 
 
The City of Lakeville continues to grow and experience moderate levels of development activity in the commercial, industrial 
and residential sectors in 2008 with the City issuing building permits with a total valuation over $125 million. 
 
Included in the valuation is the construction of nearly 570,000 square feet of new commercial development that took place in 
First Park Lakeville in 2008.  This included the construction of Uponor’s North American distribution facility and a 
speculative warehouse distribution building. 
  
The City issued permits for approximately 150,000 square feet of new commercial  development including Brunswick Zone 
XL, two new daycares, several restaurants, and other assorted retail. 
 
Residential development continued to slow in 2008 with building permits issued for 137 new single-family homes with a total 
valuation of nearly $37 million.  The trend continued in the townhome, condo and twin home market, resulting in 37 permits 
being issued with a valuation of over $5 million.  Two senior living facilities permits totaling 242 units and having a valuation 
of $29 million were also issued.  With a total number of 416 residential units in 2008, Lakeville ranked third in the Metro area 
behind Bloomington and Minneapolis. 
 
City of Rosemount 
 
The Rosemount Community Development Department monitored thousands of building projects around the City during 2008, 
ranging from minor home improvements to multi-million dollar commercial buildings and 237 new housing units. Although 
construction activity slowed in 2008, the department processed 45 planning applications during the year, and issued permits 
for $26.2 million worth of non-residential projects.  
 
In 2008, the City welcomed several new businesses including the Pond, and several Rosemount businesses expanded, 
including Flint Hills.  In addition, several new buildings began construction including Waterford Commons, a Fairview 
medical clinic, and the new St. Joseph’s School. 
 
The department has been creating the City’s 2030 Comprehensive Plan to open an additional 1,500 acres of  land to 
accommodate an expected population of 45,000 people in the year 2030.  The department also prepared updates to the City’s 
planning and zoning regulations, including rules that will provide more consistent treatment of industrial sites in the northeast 
corner of the City.  Inspectors sent notices to correct 111 code violations during the year.   As part of a plan to maintain the 
quality of Rosemount’s neighborhoods, 536 residential properties were inspected to make sure they meet City standards. 
 

 
Financial Institutions in the County 

Banks 
Deposits as of 

December 31, 2008 
Bremer Bank, National Association          $ 1,812,922,441  
Vermillion State Bank                348,281,212  
Minnwest Bank Metro                222,134,720 
Premier Bank Minnesota                171,957,714  
Castle Rock Bank                100,865,719  
Provincial Bank                  66,380,584  
Gateway Bank                  56,294,970  
First State Bank of Rosemount                   52,885,563 
Lakeview Bank                  48,494,475  
Key Community Bank                  45,861,213  
Rosemount National Bank                  37,619,512  

  
Total          $ 2,963,698,123  
  
Branches of Twin Cities financial institutions are also located throughout the County. 
Source:  Federal Reserve Bank (Minneapolis) homepage 
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Education 
 
All of five independent school districts (ISD) and portions of six other school districts are located in the County.   
 
• ISD 191 (Burnsville-Eagan-Savage) The District enrolled 10,000 students from a population of 62,000 residents in a 37 

square mile area.  During the 2008-2009 school year, the district operated 18 buildings: one high school, three junior high 
schools, 10 elementary schools, three special services buildings including Diamondhead Education Center, and an office 
building for central office staff.  The District is organized by grade level with elementary schools serving students in 
Kindergarten through grade 6, junior high serving grades 7-9, and the high school serving grades 10-12.  
 

• ISD 197 (West St. Paul-Mendota Heights)  ISD 197 educates 4,600 students in five elementary schools, two middle 
schools and one high school.  The District includes portions of Eagan, Inver Grove Heights, Mendota, Mendota Heights, 
Sunfish Lake and West St. Paul.  Given current realities of the economic climate, enrollment trends, increasing demands 
for school accountability and student achievement, the District is establishing a Blue Ribbon Panel on the future of 
District 197.  The Blue Ribbon Panel will be an advisory citizen task force that will explore a variety of research and data 
about grade configuration, building capacity, and educational programming that best prepares students for a competitive 
global society. 

 
• ISD 194 (Lakeville) The Lakeville student enrollment exceeded 11,100 students in grades Kindergarten through twelve 

during the 2007-08 school year.  District facilities include nine elementary schools for students in Kindergarten through 
grade five, three middle schools for students in grades six through eight, and Area Learning Center for students in grades 
eight through twelve, and two high schools for students in grades nine through twelve. 

  
• ISD 200 (Hastings) The Hastings School District encompasses over 170 square miles and is, geographically, one of the 

largest school districts in the Twin Cities metropolitan area.  The school system has a Kindergarten through grade twelve 
enrollment of approximately 5,000 students and a total district population of about 28,000 residents.  Independent School 
District #200 serves the cities of Hampton, Hastings, Miesville, New Trier, and Vermillion, and portions of Denmark, 
Douglas, Hampton, Marshan, Nininger, Ravenna, and Vermillion townships.   

 
• ISD 192 (Farmington) The District includes all of the city of Farmington, as well as a portion of Lakeville and several 

surrounding townships.  Total population within the district has reached 30,000.  Student population is more than 6,200 
and is expected to grow to 8,000 within 10 years. 

 
• ISD 199 (Inver Grove Heights) Inver Grove Heights includes three elementary schools, a middle school and a high 

school.  A fee-based full-day Kindergarten program is offered in addition to half-day Kindergarten.  Aatheneum, a magnet 
program for highly gifted students, began in 2002. 
 

• ISD 6 (South St. Paul) South St. Paul has two elementary schools, a 7th through12th grade high school with 7th and 8th 
grades in a middle school setting and a community learning center providing an alternative education.  The South St. Paul 
Public School District offers All-Day, every day Kindergarten without a fee.  In addition, both elementary schools are in 
the final implementation stages for the prestigious and highly sought after International Baccalaureate Primary Years 
Program (PYP) while the Junior High has recently completed the implementation of the Middle Years International 
Baccalaureate Program (MYP) in grades 7-10.  SSP High school offers a well established elite International Baccalaureate 
(I.B.) program with its worldwide curriculum.  South St. Paul Public Schools is well on its way to becoming what would 
be one of the first public school systems in the nation to offer the demanding International Baccalaureate Program to all of 
their students. 

 
• ISD 659 (Northfield) Northfield Public Schools serve Northfield, northern Rice, southern Dakota and part of Goodhue 

counties with three elementary schools (K-5), a middle school (grades 6-8), a high school and an alternative high school. 
The district also sponsors two charter schools.  

 
• ISD 917 (Intermediate School District) The District provides non-traditional educational programs that meet the 

individual and technical needs of students.  Dakota County Secondary Technical Center (DCSTC) provides technical 
education for high school students.  When a traditional high school setting is not meeting a student’s needs, they may 
complete high school through Dakota County Alternative Learning School (DCALS).  They have a Teenage Pregnancy 
Program (TAPP) that is an alternative school program for pregnant teens to address pregnancy and parenting issues in a 
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comfortable atmosphere while working on academic credits.  The district serves over 1,200 students in one or more of the 
following programs:   deaf/hard of hearing, vision impaired, physical therapy, transition (TESA), severe and multiply 
impaired (DASH), students with unique needs (SUN), emotional and behavioral needs (IDEA), autism spectrum disorders 
(PACES), mental health day treatment (YTP), and corrections Juvenile Services Center.  Referrals for services are 
accepted from local school districts’ director of special education. 

 
• ISD 659 (Randolph) In 2007-08, the district enrolled 515 total students with 252 in elementary (grades K-6), and 263 in 

high school (grades 7-12). In 2008-09, the district enrolled 544 total students with 283 in elementary and 261 in high 
school. 

 
• ISD 196 (Rosemount-Apple Valley-Eagan) - In August 2008, for the sixth year in a row, District 196 was selected to 

receive the Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Association of School Business Officials (ASBO) 
International. ISD 196 is the fourth largest school district in Minnesota, serving approximately 28,000 students from early 
childhood through grade 12, as well as young adults with special needs through age 21. The 110 square-mile district 
boundary includes all or part of seven cities – Rosemount, Apple Valley, Eagan, Burnsville, Coates, Inver Grove Heights 
and Lakeville – and rural Empire and Vermillion townships. District 196 demographics: total population – 147,786, total 
households – 53,200, and 43 percent of households have preschool and/or school-aged children. 

 
The Dakota County Technical College’s main campus is located on 200-acres in the City of Rosemount.  There are two other 
sites in Apple Valley and Eagan.  The Dakota County Technical College opened in 1973 and in 2007 they served almost 
15,000 students.  Nearly 5,000 students are enrolled in regular credit courses and almost 10,000 students are enrolled in 
customized training hour-based courses.  
 
Founded in 1970, Inver Hills Community College is located on a 90-acre tract of land in the City of Inver Grove Heights.  The 
college was founded in 1970 and more than 100,000 students have attended.  The current enrollment is over 8,000 students.  
 
Health Care Facilities 
 
There are three hospitals located in Dakota County.  These hospitals, licensed for a total of 223 beds, are Fairview Ridges 
Hospital, Regina Medical Complex and Northfield City Hospital, which opened May of 2003.  There are many home facilities 
located throughout the County.  The number of licensed nursing home beds is 1,074. 
 
Major Initiatives by Dakota County 
 
Dakota County government had the following highlights in 2008: 
 

• Published the 2030 Comprehensive Land Use Plan, which will provide guidance and priorities for the next 10 years. 
• Started the Real Estate Management System (REMS) to find a vendor to supply property recording, assessing and 

taxing functions to replace an aging custom built system, which is more difficult to maintain every year. 
• Purchased  the Butler Trust acquiring an 825-acre tract of land to develop a new park and natural wildlife preserve. 
• Enhanced the county intranet web pages to be more functionally organized to make it easier to use for employees.   
• Continued major construction on the Interstate 35 and County Road 70 intersection in Lakeville. 
• Reopened the newly remodeled Wentworth Library to the public. 
• Published the 2008 Community Indicators Report. 
 

Many actions were taken to improve the operations of the county organization.  Some of the most significant follow: 
 

• Using Employment and Economic Assistance to implement a state-of the-art client scheduling system that leverages 
client self-service and document imaging, ultimately helping financial specialists handle growing caseloads. 

• Planning to reorganize the three major planning groups within the County under one department. 
• Continued to expand the I-Net (fiber optic network) with more cities, schools and soon other counties in order to 

decrease redundant networks, increase speeds and decrease annual costs.   
• Implemented process improvements for Women, Infants and Children (WIC) appointments; Public Health intake; 

purchasing and employee profile automation. 
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Future Dakota County plans include: 
 

• Starting a search for a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system to replace the existing financial and 
payroll/personnel systems; 

• Starting implementation of a new campground reservation system to make it easier for citizens to register for 
campgrounds online; 

• Continuing the construction of a new library in the City of Rosemount, anticipated to open in February 2009; 
• Progressing in the collaboration with Anoka County to build a common attorney case management system, 

implementation is scheduled in the near future; 
 
Cash Management and Investment 
 
The Property Taxation and Records department, formerly the Treasurer-Auditor’s department, is responsible for investing 
available funds for the County.  Investment maturities are laddered over time to meet current and future obligations. 
 
In 2008, Dakota County earned $13.5 million in investment income.  In comparison to 2007 this amount reflects a decrease of 
$4.7 million.  The investment income is comprised of interest received, interest accrued and a fair market value adjustment.  
Interest rates continued to drop throughout the year. The weighted average rate of return for 2008 was 3.72%. 
 
In 1993, the county developed a policy for designating fund balance to finance expenditures from the beginning of the year 
through the various tax and other revenue collection dates.  In most cases, this equates to four months’ worth of County tax 
levy.  Current year tax collections are not due until May 15.  Additionally, the first half payment of the major property tax aid, 
County Program Aid, is not received until July.  To accommodate this lag, fifty percent of the total County Program Aid 
allocation is designated for cash flow.  In total, the amount designated for cash flow at the end of 2008 was $55.8 million. 
 
Debt Administration 
 
The ratio of net bonded debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita are useful indicators of the 
County's debt position for  County management, citizens, and investors.  The data for Dakota County at the end of the 2008 
fiscal year is: 
          
              Amount   Debt per capita 
  Gross direct bonded debt  $110,425,000         $197 
 
Risk Management 
 
Effective March 1, 1993, the County contracted with Health Partners for a fully insured plan of hospitalization, medical and 
major medical benefits for its employees. 
 
The County is self-insured for its workers' compensation coverage as provided by Minnesota Statute Chapter 176.  The 
County annually appropriates a loss reserve in the General Fund.  The County maintains reinsurance with the State Workers' 
Compensation Reinsurance Association for individual losses in excess of $410,000.  The County is under contract with RTW, 
Inc. for the administration of its claims. 
 
Dakota County is insured through One Beacon Insurance for auto liability.  The limits are $400,000 bodily injury and property 
damage per person and $1,200,000 bodily injury and property damage per occurrence. 
 
Dakota County is self-insured for all tort liability claims within the context and intent of Minnesota Statute Chapter 466.  Such 
statute provides that effective January 1, 2008, Dakota County is subject to maximum liabilities of $400,000 per person and 
$1,200,000 for each claim.  The County is administering a self-funded program to cover its risks associated with general and 
professional liability exposures.  The County annually appropriates additional funds to maintain an adequate liability loss 
reserve in the General Fund.  The County believes the amount reserved, along with amounts budgeted for fiscal year 2008 is  
adequate to cover losses for which the County may be liable.  The designated fund balance for insurance was $2,325,613 at the 
end of 2008. 
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2008 Dakota County Organizational Structure 
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Notes:   
1. The County Board has a funding liaison role with departments listed in italics (County Attorney; County Sheriff; County Coroner; County 

Library; Historical Society; County Fair; Extension Services; Soil and Water Conservation District; and Community Development Agency).  
The County Board has direct administrative control over departments not listed in italics.  
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MINNESOTA 

 
ORGANIZATION 
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    Term 
Officer Name From To 
    
Commissioners:    
 1st District Joseph A. Harris Jan. 1981 Dec. 2012 
 2nd District Kathleen A. Gaylord Jan. 2003 Dec. 2010 
 3rd District Thomas A. Egan Jan. 2005 Dec. 2012 
 4th District *Nancy Schouweiler Jan. 1999 Dec. 2010 
 5th District Michael E. Turner Jan. 1989 Dec. 2008 
 6th District Paul J. Krause Jan. 1995 Dec. 2010 
 7th District Willis E. Branning Jan. 1997 Dec. 2012 

    
    
Officers:    
  Elected -     
 Attorney James C. Backstrom Sep. 1987 Dec. 2010 
 Sheriff Don Gudmundson Jan. 1995 Dec. 2010 
    
    
  Appointed -     
 County Administrator Brandt Richardson May 1992 Indefinite 
 Director of Operations, Mgmt. & Budget John C. Ditmore Mar. 1992 Indefinite 
 Director of Community Services David A. Rooney Feb. 1988 Indefinite 
 Director of Physical Development Lenora M. Thompson Dec. 2008 Indefinite 
 Director of Public Service & Revenue Div. Thomas V. Novak July  1998 Indefinite 
    
    
    
    
* Chair    
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 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of County Commissioners 
Dakota County 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of  Dakota County, Minnesota, as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2008, including the Community Development Agency (CDA) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial 
statements, as listed in the table of contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of 
Dakota County’s management.  Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit.  We did not audit the financial statements of the Dakota County 
CDA, which represent 99.4 percent, 99.3 percent, and 97.3 percent, respectively, of the assets, 
net assets, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units.  Those financial 
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our 
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Dakota County CDA, is based solely 
on the report of the other auditors. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that 
our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
 
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
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component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for Dakota 
County as of December 31, 2008, including the Dakota County CDA as of June 30, 2008, and 
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the 
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Highway, Community Services, 
and County Parks Special Revenue Funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board.  We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information.  However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion 
on it. 
 
Our audit was made for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Dakota County’s basic financial statements.  The combining and individual 
fund statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to 
the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
June 25, 2009, on our consideration of Dakota County’s internal control over financial reporting 
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

 
   
   

REBECCA OTTO GREG HIERLINGER, CPA 
STATE AUDITOR DEPUTY STATE AUDITOR 
 
June 25, 2009 
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Dakota County’s Financial Management offers readers this narrative overview and analysis of financial activities for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2008.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 
information furnished in our letter of transmittal and the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• Dakota County’s assets exceeded liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year (12/31/08) by $699,372,260 (net 
assets).  Of this amount, $188,220,596 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• Dakota County’s total net assets increased by $48,488,770 over 2007.  This is a result of budget savings and an increase 
in capital assets.   

• As of the close of the 2008 fiscal year, Dakota County governmental funds ending fund balances were $219,194,188, 
compared to $252,479,019 in 2007.  This decrease is primarily due to the use of fund balance for the acquisition of 
parkland and other capital projects.  Approximately 75.1%, or $164,679,896 of the total fund balance is available for 
spending at Dakota County’s discretion (unreserved fund balance). 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $67,923,464 or 77.2% of total 
General Fund expenditures, a decrease of $14,039,248 in comparison with the prior year. 

 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Dakota County’s basic financial statements.  Dakota 
County’s basic financial statements consist of three components:  1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial 
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report contains other supplementary information in addition to the 
basic financial statements. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a 
broad overview of Dakota County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of Dakota County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the 
two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of Dakota County is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how Dakota County’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal 
year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash 
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Dakota County that are principally supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant 
portion of their cost through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of Dakota County 
include general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, human services, health, culture and recreation, 
conservation of natural resources, and economic development.  The business-type activity of Dakota County includes the Dakota 
County Geographic Information System (GIS). 
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The government-wide financial statements include not only Dakota County (known as the primary government), but also the 
legally separate Community Development Agency (CDA) and the legally separate Vermillion River Watershed (VRW), for 
which Dakota County is financially accountable (known as component units).  Financial information for the CDA and the VRW 
are reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.  The Regional Rail Authority, 
although also legally separate, functions for all practical purposes as a department of Dakota County, and therefore has been 
included as an integral part of the primary government. 
 
The government-wide financial statements may be found on pages 27-31 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives.  Dakota County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to 
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of Dakota County may be divided 
into three broad categories:  governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances 
of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s 
near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s 
near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds 
and governmental activities. 
 
Within the governmental funds, Dakota County maintains four fund types:  General, Special Revenue, Debt Services and Capital 
Projects.  Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the major funds.  Major funds include:  General Fund, Highway Fund, 
Community Services Fund, Parks Fund, Debt Services Fund, and Capital Projects Fund.  Data from the other five special 
revenue non-major governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of the 
non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
Dakota County adopts an annual budget for its six major governmental funds and the Library, Regional Rail and Environmental 
Management non-major special revenue funds.  A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for these funds to 
demonstrate compliance with their budgets. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements may be found on pages 32-44 of this report. 
 
General Fund.  The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources not required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Special Revenue Fund.  Special Revenue governmental funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.  The Special Revenue Funds include: 
 

• Highway • County Library • Regional Rail 
• Community Services • County Parks • Law Library 
• Environmental Management • Attorney Forfeiture  
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Debt Services Fund.  The Debt Services Fund accounts for the payment of principal, interest and fiscal charges on long-term 
debt obligations of Dakota County. 
 
Capital Projects Fund.  The Capital Projects Fund tracks major building construction projects. 
 
Proprietary Funds.  Dakota County maintains two different types of proprietary funds: an enterprise fund and an internal 
service fund.  The enterprise fund is used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements.  Dakota County uses an enterprise fund to account for its Geographic Information System financial 
activity including the sale of GIS data/maps and costs of updating the GIS database.  The internal service fund is an accounting 
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among Dakota County’s various functions.  Dakota County created such 
a fund in 1997 called the Employee Services Reserve Fund.  All compensated absences were transferred to it in 1997.  Each year 
an adjustment is made to reflect the current value of current vacation and sick balances.  In 2007, the activity for the other post 
employment benefits was included in this fund. This fund has no equity balance as the cash balance is offset by a long-term 
liability.  Because this service predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type functions it has been included with 
governmental activities in the government wide financial statements. 
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.  The 
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the GIS Enterprise Fund, which is considered to be a 
major fund of Dakota County.  The Employee Services Reserve Internal Service Fund is reported separately on the proprietary 
fund financial statements. 
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements may be found on pages 45-47 this report. 
 
Fiduciary Funds.  Fiduciary funds (Trust and Agency Funds) are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside the government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of 
those funds are not available to support Dakota County’s own programs.  The accounting method used for fiduciary funds is 
much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
The basic fiduciary fund financial statements may be found on pages 48-49 of this report. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
The notes to the financial statements may be found on pages 50-80 of this report. 
 
Other Information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
supplementary information.  The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds and 
fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules may be found on pages 81-100 of this report. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, the change in net asset amounts may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  
In the case of Dakota County, assets exceeded liabilities by $699,372,260 at the close of 2008, which is an increase of 
$48,488,770 over 2007. 
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Capital assets, net of related debt, of $502,664,473 (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, 
improvements other than buildings and construction in progress, less any related debt used to acquire assets that is still 
outstanding) represents the largest portion of net assets (71.7%).  Dakota County uses capital assets to provide services to 
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for current spending.  Although Dakota County’s investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay debt must be provided from other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate current liabilities. 
 

Dakota County’s Net Assets 
         

 Governmental  Business-type   
 activities  activities  Total 

 2008  2007  2008  2007   2008  2007 
      

Current and other assets  $   288,388,580  $306,920,871  $     197,468  $217,251  $    288,586,048  $307,138,122

Capital assets       579,420,843  517,243,957                    -  -         579,420,843  517,243,957

     Total assets       867,809,423  824,164,828         197,468  217,251        868,006,891  824,382,079

   
Long-term liabilities outstanding       118,608,772  134,136,014                    -   -         118,608,772  134,136,014

Other liabilities         50,025,858 39,362,564                        1  11          50,025,859 39,362,575

     Total liabilities       168,634,630 173,498,578                   1  11        168,634,631 173,498,589

Net assets:            

Invested in capital assets, net            

   of related debt       502,664,473  435,373,306                    -  -         502,664,473  435,373,306

Restricted           8,289,724   7,134,394         197,467  217,240            8,487,191  7,351,634

Unrestricted       188,220,596 208,158,550                    -   -         188,220,596 208,158,550

     Total net assets  $   699,174,793 $650,666,250  $     197,467 $217,240  $    699,372,260 $650,883,490
 
Dakota County’s total net assets increased by $48,488,770 from the 2007 ending balance.  This increase is a combination of 
many factors, but the primary changes are in capital assets (increases in construction in progress, and the acquisition of land) and 
budget savings from operations. 
 
An additional portion of Dakota County’s net assets, $8,487,191 or 1%, represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used.  Restricted net assets increased $1,135,557 during the current fiscal year.  The increase is 
due to restrictions on funds for future debt payments and increased obligations for Property Records’ equipment replacement.  
The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets of $188,220,596 may be used to meet Dakota County’s ongoing obligations to 
citizens and creditors.   
 
At the end of the 2008, Dakota County has positive balances in all three categories of net assets, including the government as a 
whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.  The results are similar to 2007. 
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Governmental Activities.  Governmental activities increased Dakota County’s net assets by $48,508,543 over 2007, thereby 
accounting for more than 100% of the total growth in the net assets of Dakota County.  A key element of this growth was the 
increase in capital assets of $62,176,886.  The majority of the increase in capital assets resulted from land ($26,926,157) which 
includes the purchase of several properties to be used as parkland, some of which was purchased through the Farmland and 
Natural Area Program (FNAP), along with construction in progress ($34,690,411) due to the near completion of the Robert Trail 
Library and several street construction projects.   
 
Business-type Activities.  Business-type activities decreased Dakota County’s net assets by $19,773 accounting for less than 
1% of the total change in the government’s net assets. 
 
 

Dakota County’s Changes in Net Assets 

 Governmental Business-type   
 activities activities  Total 
 2008 2007 2008 2007  2008 2007 
Revenues:            
Program revenues:            
 Fees, charges, fines and other  $    28,537,689 $  73,686,598  $     20,309 $   20,226  $    28,557,998 $  73,706,824
 Operating grants & contributions      103,309,265 62,009,581                  -  -       103,309,265 62,009,581
 Capital grants & contributions        24,648,824 16,087,826                  -  -         24,648,824 16,087,826
General revenues:       
 Taxes      124,030,432 118,503,196                  -  -       124,030,432 118,503,196
 Grants & contributions not     
 restricted to specific programs        15,950,219 18,642,707                  -  -         15,950,219 18,642,707
 Gifts and contributions               34,890 37,065                  -  -                34,890 37,065
 Investment income        13,764,069 18,436,886                  -  -         13,764,069 18,436,886
 Other          1,582,415 2,068,194                  -  -           1,582,415 2,068,194
  Total revenues      311,857,803 309,472,053         20,309 20,226 311,878,112 309,492,279
             
Expenses:            
 General government        58,446,661 55,472,603                  -  -         58,446,661 55,472,603
 Public safety        37,499,603 34,912,593                  -  -         37,499,603 34,912,593
 Highways and streets        20,428,908 20,277,098                  -  -         20,428,908 20,277,098
 Sanitation          3,498,126 3,680,402                  -  -           3,498,126 3,680,402
 Human services        94,467,561 94,635,381                  -  -         94,467,561 94,635,381
 Health        14,441,444 13,431,633                  -  -         14,441,444 13,431,633
 Culture and recreation        17,160,436 17,447,398                  -  -         17,160,436 17,447,398
 Conservation of natural resources          4,783,651 4,819,932                  -  -           4,783,651 4,819,932
 Economic development          7,712,727 12,810,832                  -  -           7,712,727 12,810,832
 Interest          4,910,143 5,509,766                  -  -           4,910,143 5,509,766
 Operating expenses - GIS                        -                     -         40,082 47,012               40,082 47,012
  Total expenses      263,349,260 262,997,638         40,082 47,012      263,389,342 263,044,650
Increase (decrease) in net assets        48,508,543 46,474,415       (19,773) (26,786)        48,488,770 46,447,629
Net assets 1/1      650,666,250 604,191,835       217,240 244,026      650,883,490 604,435,861
Net assets 12/31  $  699,174,793 $ 650,666,250  $   197,467 $ 217,240  $  699,372,260 $ 650,883,490
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Expenses and Program Revenues – Governmental Activities 
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, Dakota County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds.  The focus of Dakota County governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing Dakota County’s financing 
requirements.  In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available 
for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of 2008, Dakota County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $219,194,188 a 
decrease of $33,284,831 in comparison with the prior year.  This includes budget savings from operations of $9,019,937 offset 
by spending down of fund balance for park land and capital projects.  Most of the fund balance, $164,679,896, is unreserved, 
which is available for spending at the government’s discretion.  The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is 
not available for new spending because it has already been committed for specific purposes.  Most of the reserved fund balance 
is for Debt Service ($33,675,182), the Farmland and Natural Area Program ($7,941,172), and encumbrances ($6,936,557).  
These funds are dedicated for payment of bonds, the preservation of farmland and natural areas, and outstanding construction 
obligations.   
 
General Fund.  The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Dakota County.  At the end of 2008, the General Fund fund 
balance was $81,372,689 of which $67,923,464 was unreserved.  As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful 
to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  Unreserved fund balance represents 
77% of total General Fund expenditures of $87,944,364, while total fund balance represents 93% of that same amount. 
 
The unreserved fund balance of Dakota County’s General Fund decreased by $14,039,248 during 2008.  This change is 
primarily due to the transfer of fund balance to the Highway Fund for capital projects and to Parks Fund for parkland and capital 
projects.         
 
Highway Fund.  The Highway Fund had total fund balance of ($4,390,876) at the end of 2008.  The fund balance of the 
Highway Fund decreased by $10,810,333 during the current fiscal year.  The decrease, which has caused the fund to end the 
year with a negative balance, is due to the use of fund balance to pay for construction projects prior to receiving revenue 
expected to fund them.   
 
Community Services Fund.  The Community Services Fund had a total fund balance of $53,106,839 at the end of 2008.  The 
fund balance of the Community Services Fund increased by $3,858,138 during the current fiscal year compared to an increase of 
$7,069,177 in the previous period.  Expenditure savings in various Community Services programs, primarily personnel cost 
savings and increased revenue received in reimbursement for services in excess of budget amounts were the major factors for the 
increase.  
 
Parks Fund.  The Parks Fund had a total fund balance of $6,629,196 at the end of 2008.  The fund balance of the Parks Fund 
increased by $1,905,321 during the current fiscal year.  The increase is due to expenditure savings for capital projects which will 
be carried over to 2009.   
 
Debt Services Fund.  The Debt Services Fund had a total fund balance of $33,675,182 at the end of 2008, all of which is 
reserved for the payment of debt service.  The fund balance of the Debt Services Fund decreased by $5,433,897 during 2008.  
This change is due to the use of proceeds from the issuance of refunding bonds to pay off bonds which have reached their call 
date, offset by interest earnings on unspent bond proceeds.   
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Capital Projects Fund.  The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $20,004,298.  The fund balance for the Capital 
Projects Fund decreased by $8,483,484 during 2008 compared to a decrease of $6,978,812 in 2007.  The decreases in 2007 and 
2008 reflects utilization of funds from prior year bond proceeds.   
 
Proprietary Funds.  Dakota County proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Net assets restricted for equipment replacement of the Geographic Information Systems Enterprise Fund at the end of the year 
amounted to $197,467.  This is a decrease of $19,773 compared to 2007.  The Employee Services Reserve Internal Service Fund, 
also regarded as a proprietary fund, has no equity balance as the cash balance is offset by a long-term liability.  Other factors 
concerning the finances of these two funds are addressed in the discussion of Dakota County’s business-type activities. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
 Comparison of Original Budget to Final Amended Budget 
 
The difference between the original budget and the final amended budget was an increase of $35,051,984 for expenditures at 
fiscal year end.  The major changes from original to final budget for expenditures may be summarized as follows: 
 

• $2.2 million carry-over of 2007 funds along with a $6.8 million increase in 2008 to expand the Farmland and Natural 
Area Program to acquire permanent agricultural easements. 

• $5.2 million for the acquisition of three properties within Dakota County to be used as parkland.   
• $2.0 million carry-over in grant funding for implementation of a countywide 800 MHz radio system and homeland 

security initiatives. 
• $6.0 million for 2007 carry-over of unspent Budget Incentive Program (BIP) dollars for all departments. 
• $3.1 million for 2007 carry-over of funds for various grants and unfinished projects, including the jail management 

system, EDMS/Crimes System and election equipment.   
 
The difference between the original budget and final amended budget for revenue was $4,256,370.  This increase from original 
to final budget for revenues includes: 
 

• $1.5 million carry-over of 2007 revenue for various programs and grants including the Homeland Security Grant and 
election equipment.   

• $1.1 million carry-over of 2007 funds for construction of a countywide 800 MHz radio system. 
 

The difference between the expenditure increase of $35,051,984 and the revenue increase of $4,256,370 was funded with fund 
balance. 
 
Comparison of Actual Resources to Final Amended Budget 
 
Actual expenditures were $32,913,663 less than budget at fiscal year end.  The difference between actual and budget for 
expenditures may be summarized as follows: 

 
• $7.5 million in unspent capital equipment, child placement reserves, contingencies for inflation and budget set-asides. 
• $2.4 million in unspent revenue for bike trails that are in the process of being built.   
• $5.1 million in unspent funds for the Farmland and Natural Area Program to acquire permanent agricultural easements. 
• $6.0 million unspent Budget Incentive Program (BIP) funds for all departments. 
• $4.6 million in salaries and employee benefits savings. 
• $1.8 million in unspent grant revenue for HAVA and election equipment.   
 



DAKOTA COUNTY 
MINNESOTA 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

December 2008 
 
 

 

 25

 
Actual revenues were less than the budget by $6,795,422.  This difference was primarily due to the inability to claim grant funds 
associated with the above expenditure savings along with a $2.3 million unallotment of County Program Aid in December of 
2008.   
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets.  Dakota County’s investment in capital assets for its government and business type activities as of December 31, 
2008, amount to $579,420,843 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, 
improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress.  The total increase in 
the Dakota County investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $62,176,886, or 12.0%. 
 
Major capital asset events during 2008 included the following: 

 
• Acquired land and easements for the Farmland and Natural Area Program for $3,996,084. 
• Worked on a variety of county road construction projects and widening and expansion projects for existing streets and 

bridges; completed projects as of the close of the fiscal year totaled $1,369,243. 
• Completed construction of the 800 MHz system with year to date expenditures of $73,542 and total project 

expenditures of $6,520,667.   
• Acquired land for eventual use as rights of way at a cost of $9,314,569.  
• Continued construction of the Robert Trail Library with expenditures of $5,499,876.   

 
 

Dakota County's Capital Assets 

 Governmental  Business-type  
 activities activities Total 
 2008  2007  2008  2007  2008   2007 
Land  $   156,443,063 $ 129,516,906   $          -      $          -     $   156,443,063   $ 129,516,906
Buildings       129,314,109 130,397,746               -                  -          129,314,109   130,397,746
Machinery and equipment         13,327,544  6,524,640               -                  -            13,327,544   6,524,640
Infrastructure       197,959,613 203,007,686               -                  -          197,959,613   203,007,686
Improvements other than buildings           2,467,354 2,578,230               -                  -              2,467,354   2,578,230
Construction in progress         79,909,160 45,218,749               -                  -            79,909,160   45,218,749

Total  $   579,420,843 $ 517,243,957   $          -       $          -     $   579,420,843   $ 517,243,957
 
Additional information on Dakota County’s capital assets may be found in note III D of this report. 
 
 
Long-term Debt.  At the end of 2008, Dakota County had total bonded debt outstanding of $110,425,000.  This is a decrease of 
$14,155,000 during the current fiscal year.  The only factor in this decrease was the retirement of bond principal.  Current and 
future county tax levies plus fund balance are used to finance the entire bonded indebtedness. 
 
Dakota County maintains a “Aaa” rating from Moody’s Investor Services and a “AA+” rating from Standard & Poor’s for 
general obligation debt. 
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Dakota County's Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds 

   
 Governmental 
 activities 
 2008  2007 

General obligation bonds $ 110,425,000 $ 124,580,000
 
Total $ 110,425,000 $ 124,580,000

 
 
State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a county can incur to no more than 3% of the market value of taxable 
property in the county.  The current debt limitation for Dakota County is $1,302,505,803, which is significantly in excess of 
Dakota County’s outstanding general obligation debt of $110,425,000.  The net bonded debt per capita is $197. 
 
Additional information on Dakota County’s long-term debt may be found in note III F beginning on page 68 of this report. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 

• The unemployment rate for Dakota County as of April, 2009 is 7.3%, which is an increase from a rate of 4.3% a year 
ago.  This compares favorably to both the state and national average unemployment rate of 8.2% and 8.6% respectively. 

• Dakota County’s property tax base will likely continue to decline through 2011 due to decreasing property values.   
• Changes in federal funding will impact the County in positive ways in the next year.  The American Recovery and 

Reinvestment Act (ARRA, also known as the “stimulus bill”) has created opportunities for both formula-related 
increases as well as competitive grants for increasing service levels or funding capital projects.  The ARRA has also 
temporarily increased the federal matching rate for Medicaid services, which will increase the County’s revenues or 
decrease costs where the County provides the non-federal share of these costs.  Additionally, the federal government 
has set aside a proposed set of regulations that would have reduced the County revenue related to targeted case 
management services.   

• The State’s budget problems will continue to create pressure for local budgets, both because of direct reductions in 
funding in the near term and the uncertainty of funding levels in the future.  The continued long-time imbalance in 
revenues and spending in the State’s budget makes state aid a less reliable funding source for the County.   

• State imposed levy limits remain in place, and with the limit pegged to an inflation index, the level of property tax 
increase allowed by state law (before claims for specific special levy authority) is likely to be 1.0% or less for 2010.   

 
On December 16, 2009, the Dakota County Board of Commissioners approved the 2009 budget for $345.0 million.  This is an 
overall decrease of $12.2 million or 3.4%.  The 2009 total levy is $128.4 million, which is an increase of $4.8 million compared 
to the 2008 levy of $123.6 million, or 3.9%.  The 2009 budget includes a 4.2% property tax levy increase in operating budgets 
and a 2.2% increase for Capital Improvement programs. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Dakota County’s finances for all those with an interest in the 
government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the Financial Services Department, 1590 Highway 55, Hastings, MN 55033 or contact us via 
email at finance@co.dakota.mn.us or visit our web site at www.dakotacounty.us. 

mailto:finance@co.dakota.mn.us
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Primary Government
Community Vermillion

Governmental Business-Type Development River
Activities Activities Total Agency Watershed

Component Units

DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

Assets

  Cash and pooled investments $ 219,107,080    $ 197,468           $ 219,304,548    $ 36,256,305      $ 1,241,360        
  Petty cash and change funds 15,905             -                   15,905             -                   -                   
  Departmental cash -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
  Cash with escrow agent 25,886,950      -                   25,886,950      -                   -                   
  Investments -                   -                   -                   15,076,137      -                   
  Taxes receivable
    Current - net -                   -                   -                   5,669,366        66,104             
    Prior - net 3,234,053        -                   3,234,053        -                   -                   
  Accounts receivable - net 1,435,096        -                   1,435,096        656,552           21,000             
  Note receivable -                   -                   -                   30,511,320      -                   
  Accrued interest receivable 1,990,200        -                   1,990,200        529,911           -                   
  Due from other governments 27,858,268      -                   27,858,268      6,199,575        97,328             
  Inventories 746,354           -                   746,354           -                   -                   
  Prepaid items 22,629             -                   22,629             282,322           -                   
  Restricted assets
    Cash and pooled investments -                   -                   -                   34,026,423      -                   
    Accrued interest receivable-temporary -                   -                   -                   851,940           -                   
  Deferred charges 561,927           -                   561,927           626,140           -                   
  Investment in joint venture -                   -                   -                   7,439,971        -                   
  Lease receivable 7,530,118        -                   7,530,118        -                   -                   
  Capital assets 

Non-depreciable 236 352 223 - 236 352 223 23 980 636 -    Non-depreciable 236,352,223    -                 236,352,223  23,980,636     -                 
    Depreciable - net of accumulated
     depreciation 343,068,620    -                   343,068,620    76,684,709      -                   

      Total Assets $ 867,809,423    $ 197,468           $ 868,006,891    $ 238,791,307    $ 1,425,792        

Liabilities

  Accounts payable $ 10,646,554      $ -                   $ 10,646,554      $ 2,546,096        $ 65,282             
  Salaries payable 3,765,535        -                   3,765,535        -                   -                   
  Contracts payable 1,811,618        -                   1,811,618        -                   -                   
  Due to other governments 3,442,915        1                      3,442,916        1,099,918        188,304           
  Accrued interest payable 1,994,577        -                   1,994,577        1,689,304        -                   
  Deferred revenue - unearned 15,112,538      -                   15,112,538      13,358,650      -                   
  Compensated absences
    Due within one year 328,576           -                   328,576           359,352           -                   
    Due in more than one year 17,445,369      -                   17,445,369      260,241           -                   
  Claims and judgments payable
    Due within one year 273,545           -                   273,545           -                   -                   
    Due in more than one year 630,656           -                   630,656           -                   -                   
  General obligation bonds payable
    Due within one year 12,650,000      -                   12,650,000      2,225,000        -                   
    Due in more than one year 98,506,574      -                   98,506,574      55,933,401      -                   
  OPEB liability
    Due in more than one year 2,026,173        -                   2,026,173        -                   -                   
  Notes payable
    Due within one year -                   -                   -                   404,671           -                   
    Due in more than one year -                   -                   -                   2,191,197        -                   

      Total Liabilities $ 168,634,630    $ 1                      $ 168,634,631    $ 80,067,830      $ 253,586           

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Primary Government
Community Vermillion

Governmental Business-Type Development River
Activities Activities Total Agency Watershed

Component Units

DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

Net Assets

  Invested in capital assets - net of
   related debt $ 502,664,473    $ -                   $ 502,664,473    $ 62,660,057      $ -                   
  Restricted for
    Capital projects -                   -                   -                   9,638,312        -                   
    Debt service 5,062,081        -                   5,062,081        -                   -                   
    Equipment replacement 3,227,643        197,467           3,425,110        -                   -                   
    Federal grants -                   -                   -                   14,798,128      -                   
    Tax increment -                   -                   -                   5,580,168        -                   
    HOPE program -                   -                   -                   10,910,586      -                   
  Unrestricted 188,220,596    -                   188,220,596    55,136,226      1,172,206        

      Total Net Assets $ 699,174,793    $ 197,467         $ 699,372,260  $ 158,723,477   $ 1,172,206      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Government Community Vermillion
Fees, Charges, Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Development River

Expenses Fines, and Other Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Agency Watershed

Functions/Programs

  Primary government
    Governmental activities
      General government $      58,446,661 $              7,867,792 $              3,893,517 $                       -   $      (46,685,352) $                      -   $      (46,685,352)
      Public safety      37,499,603                2,731,099                8,533,620                           -        (26,234,884)                      -        (26,234,884)
      Highways and streets      20,428,908                1,495,081                6,054,166            24,648,824       11,769,163                      -         11,769,163 
      Sanitation        3,498,126                6,222,558                       8,341                           -           2,732,773                      -           2,732,773 
      Human services      94,467,561                2,782,157              59,829,926                           -        (31,855,478)                      -        (31,855,478)
      Health      14,441,444                5,772,599                5,458,305                           -          (3,210,540)                      -          (3,210,540)
      Culture and recreation      17,160,436                1,622,497              10,126,045                           -          (5,411,894)                      -          (5,411,894)
      Conservation of natural resources        4,783,651                     43,906                2,153,127                           -          (2,586,618)                      -          (2,586,618)
      Economic development        7,712,727                            -                  7,252,218                           -             (460,509)                      -             (460,509)
      Interest        4,910,143                            -                              -                             -          (4,910,143)                      -          (4,910,143)

    Total governmental activities $    263,349,260 $            28,537,689 $          103,309,265 $        24,648,824 $    (106,853,482) $                      -   $    (106,853,482)

B i t ti iti

Component Units

    Business-type activities
      Geographic Information System             40,082                   20,309                          -                         -                       -               (19,773)             (19,773)

      Total primary government $    263,389,342 $            28,557,998 $         103,309,265 $       24,648,824 $   (106,853,482) $            (19,773) $   (106,873,255)

  Component units
    Community Development Agency $      34,618,320 $            13,799,731 $            21,932,261 $             708,897 $        1,822,569 $                    -   
    Vermillion River Watershed        1,017,956                          -                   196,434                       -                      -           (821,522)

      Total component units $      35,636,276 $            13,799,731 $           22,128,695 $            708,897 $       1,822,569 $        (821,522)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Government Community Vermillion
Fees, Charges, Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Development River

Expenses Fines, and Other Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Agency Watershed

Component Units

General Revenues
  Property taxes $     121,557,986 $                      -   $     121,557,986 $        7,512,146 $        1,032,731 
  Gravel taxes            356,562                      -              356,562                    -                      -   
  Mortgage registry and deed tax            431,561                      -              431,561                    -                      -   
  Tax increment financing                     -                        -                       -          3,288,340                    -   
  Taxes - other         1,684,323                      -           1,684,323                    -                      -   
  Gifts and contributions - Unrestricted              34,890                      -                34,890                    -                      -   
  Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs       15,950,219                      -         15,950,219                    -               88,235 
  Investment income       13,764,069                      -         13,764,069        1,952,466             36,722 
  Miscellaneous         1,516,087                      -           1,516,087                    -                      -   
  Gain on sale of capital assets              66,328                      -                66,328                    -                      -   

    Total general revenues and special items $     155,362,025 $                      -   $     155,362,025 $      12,752,952 $        1,157,688 

  Change in net assets $       48,508,543 $             (19,773) $       48,488,770 $      14,575,521 $           336,166 

Net Assets - Beginning     650,666,250             217,240     650,883,490    144,147,956           836,040 

Net Assets - Ending $    699,174,793 $            197,467 $    699,372,260 $   158,723,477 $       1,172,206 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2008

Other Total
Community County Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Highway Services Parks Service Projects Funds Funds

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 78,620,346       $ 6,389               $ 50,301,505      $ 10,313,379      $ 12,162,522      $ 21,480,998      $ 29,599,750      $ 202,484,889    
Petty cash and change funds 6,545                -                   6,790               600                  -                   -                   1,970               15,905             
Cash with escrow agent -                    -                   -                   -                   25,886,950      -                   -                   25,886,950      
Taxes receivable
  Prior 1,122,265         307,163           1,242,840        90,567             49,020             183,568           238,630           3,234,053        
Accounts receivable 276,123            94,825             447,609           4,590               -                   610                  611,339           1,435,096        
Accrued interest receivable 1,990,200         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,990,200        
Due from other funds 6,021,084         114,420           436,931           180,818           -                   -                   50,987             6,804,240        
Due from other governments 1,319,730         10,434,174      14,733,596      505,598           -                   277,794           587,376           27,858,268      
Advance to other funds 1,872,670         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,872,670        
Prepaid items 19,766              2,863               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   22,629             
Inventories 348,942            397,412           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   746,354           
Lease receivable 7,530,118         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,530,118        

      Total Assets $ 99,127,789       $ 11,357,246    $ 67,169,271    $ 11,095,552    $ 38,098,492      $ 21,942,970    $ 31,090,052    $ 279,881,372  

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 4,250,235         $ 1,814,715        $ 2,539,304        $ 195,878           $ 750                  $ 1,419,807        $ 425,865           $ 10,646,554      
  Salaries payable 1,278,798         173,061           1,944,144        72,943             -                   -                   296,589           3,765,535        
  Claims and judgments payable-current 16,091              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   16,091             
  Contracts payable -                    1,473,920        -                   35,122             -                   302,576           -                   1,811,618        
  Due to other funds 3,140,797         5,371,670        791,751           35,254             -                   49,315             593,380           9,982,167        
  Due to other governments 429,772            32,261             2,816,267        11,592             -                   15,206             137,817           3,442,915        
  Deferred revenue - unavailable 881,960            6,762,190        5,508,728        495,561           39,760             151,768           197,129           14,037,096      
  Deferred revenue - unearned 7,757,447         120,305           462,238           1,747,336        4,382,800        -                   642,412           15,112,538      
  Advance from other funds -                    -                   -                   1,872,670        -                   -                   -                   1,872,670        

    Total Liabilities $ 17,755,100       $ 15,748,122      $ 14,062,432      $ 4,466,356        $ 4,423,310        $ 1,938,672        $ 2,293,192        $ 60,687,184      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2008

Other Total
Community County Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Highway Services Parks Service Projects Funds Funds

Liabilities and Fund Balances
(Continued)

Fund Balances
  Reserved for
    Encumbrances $ -                    $ 4,016,396        $ -                   $ 2,295,045        $ -                   $ 625,116           $ -                   $ 6,936,557        
    Advances to other funds 1,872,670         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,872,670        
    Inventories 348,942            397,412           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   746,354           
    Recorder's equipment purchases 3,227,643         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   3,227,643        
    Debt service -                    -                   -                   -                   33,675,182      -                   -                   33,675,182      
    Farmland and Natural Area Program 7,941,172         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   7,941,172        
    Spring Lake Park -                    -                   -                   55,916             -                   -                   -                   55,916             
    Victim Witness 58,798              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   58,798             
  Unreserved
    Designated for future expenditures 1,544,083         -                   1,945,139        76,401             -                   -                   -                   3,565,623        
    Designated for cash flows 28,254,769       -                   22,616,366      1,669,379        -                   3,274,822        -                   55,815,336      
    Designated for capital improvements -                    -                   -                   2,531,855        -                   16,104,360      -                   18,636,215      

Designated for contingencies 2 325 613 2 325 613    Designated for contingencies 2,325,613         -                 -                 -                 -                  -                 -                 2,325,613      
    Designated for petty cash funds 6,545                -                   6,790               600                  -                   -                   -                   13,935             
    Designated for capital equipment 11,007,085       -                   143,170           -                   -                   -                   -                   11,150,255      
    Designated for OPEB 12,099,563       -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   12,099,563      
    Designated for budget incentive program 6,036,892         -                   1,422,073        -                   -                   -                   -                   7,458,965        
    Designated for budget stabilization fund 6,648,914         -                   26,973,301      -                   -                   -                   -                   33,622,215      
    Undesignated -                    (8,804,684)       -                   -                   -                   -                   (8,804,684)       
  Unreserved, reported in nonmajor
    Special revenue funds -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   28,796,860      28,796,860      

    Total Fund Balances $ 81,372,689       $ (4,390,876)       $ 53,106,839      $ 6,629,196        $ 33,675,182      $ 20,004,298      $ 28,796,860      $ 219,194,188    

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 99,127,789       $ 11,357,246    $ 67,169,271    $ 11,095,552    $ 38,098,492      $ 21,942,970    $ 31,090,052    $ 279,881,372  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2008

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 219,194,188     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different
 because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities 
 are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 579,420,843       

 
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
 and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds. 14,037,096         

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
 current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

General obligation bonds $ (110,425,000)     
Unamortized premiums on G.O. Bonds (1,016,970)         
Unamortized discounts on G.O. Bonds 285,396             
Claims and judgments payable (888,110)            
Accrued interest payable (1,994,577)         
Deferred debt issuance charges 561,927             (113,477,334)     

Net assets of governmental activities $ 699,174,793     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Other Total
Community County Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Highway Services Parks Service Projects Funds Funds

Revenues
  Taxes $ 36,702,246      $ 13,856,378      $ 49,460,198      $ 3,697,050        $ 1,999,727        $ 7,158,254        $ 10,612,730      $ 123,486,583    
  Licenses and permits 106,541           159,385           -                  56,460             -                  -                  631,701           954,087           
  Intergovernmental 20,910,262      26,324,650      77,649,633      10,569,783      -                  566,141           3,747,457        139,767,926    
  Charges for services 13,263,689      1,209,839        8,415,041        769,784           -                  -                  6,539,821        30,198,174      
  Fines and forfeits 72,216             -                  -                  10,217             -                  -                  31,923             114,356           
  Gifts and contributions 3,185               -                  -                  2,120               -                  -                  29,585             34,890             
  Investment earnings 11,476,422      -                  -                  20,234             1,951,020        -                  88,343             13,536,019      
  Miscellaneous 2,625,958        384,096           2,406,519        -                  -                  -                  376,010           5,792,583        

      Total Revenues $ 85,160,519      $ 41,934,348      $ 137,931,391    $ 15,125,648      $ 3,950,747        $ 7,724,395        $ 22,057,570      $ 313,884,618    

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $ 61,907,476      $ -                  $ 627,221           $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ 539,679           $ 63,074,376      
    Public safety 19,130,403      -                  17,796,775      -                  -                  -                  -                  36,927,178      

Highways and streets - 56 543 277 - - - - - 56 543 277    Highways and streets -                  56,543,277    -                -                -                 -                -                56,543,277    
    Sanitation -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  6,660,486        6,660,486        
    Human services -                  -                  96,753,204      -                  -                  -                  -                  96,753,204      
    Health -                  -                  14,344,511      -                  -                  -                  -                  14,344,511      
    Culture and recreation 248,245           -                  -                  20,065,210      -                  -                  12,198,324      32,511,779      
    Conservation of natural resources 4,351,268        -                  387,779           -                  -                  -                  -                  4,739,047        
    Economic development 2,306,972        -                  4,040,919        -                  -                  -                  1,304,127        7,652,018        
  Capital outlay -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  8,561,029        -                  8,561,029        
  Debt service
    Principal -                  -                  -                  -                  14,155,000      -                  -                  14,155,000      
    Interest -                  -                  -                  -                  5,103,038        -                  -                  5,103,038        
    Administrative - fiscal charges -                  -                  -                  -                  4,900               -                  -                  4,900               

      Total Expenditures $ 87,944,364      $ 56,543,277      $ 133,950,409    $ 20,065,210      $ 19,262,938      $ 8,561,029        $ 20,702,616      $ 347,029,843    

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (2,783,845)       $ (14,608,929)     $ 3,980,982        $ (4,939,562)       $ (15,312,191)     $ (836,634)          $ 1,354,954        $ (33,145,225)     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Other Total
Community County Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

General Highway Services Parks Service Projects Funds Funds

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 136,875           $ 5,665,062        $ 14,031             $ 6,844,883        $ 9,878,294        $ 1,281,611        $ 96,868             $ 23,917,624      
  Transfers out (13,197,516)     (1,654,772)       (136,875)          -                  -                  (8,928,461)       -                  (23,917,624)     
  Proceeds from sale of assets 75,589             -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  75,589             

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (12,985,052)     $ 4,010,290        $ (122,844)          $ 6,844,883        $ 9,878,294        $ (7,646,850)       $ 96,868             $ 75,589             

  Change in Fund Balance $ (15,768,897)     $ (10,598,639)     $ 3,858,138        $ 1,905,321        $ (5,433,897)       $ (8,483,484)       $ 1,451,822        $ (33,069,636)     

Fund Balance - January 1 97,145,087      6,419,457        49,248,701      4,723,875        39,109,079      28,487,782      27,345,038      252,479,019    
Increase (decrease) in reserved
 for inventories (3,501)              (211,694)          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (215,195)          

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 81,372,689      $ (4,390,876)     $ 53,106,839    $ 6,629,196      $ 33,675,182     $ 20,004,298    $ 28,796,860    $ 219,194,188  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (33,069,636)        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
 different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in
 the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
 their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for general capital assets, infrastructure, and other
 related capital assets $ 74,854,947         
Current year depreciation (12,552,458)        62,302,489         

In the statement of activities, only the gain or loss on the disposal of 
 capital assets is reported, whereas, in the governmental funds, 
 the proceeds from the disposal increase financial resources.  Therefore,
 the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the net
 book value of the disposed capital assets. (125,603)            

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
 financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 4,933,353           

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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 but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets

Principal repayments
General obligation bonds 14,155,000         

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
 use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
 expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in accrued interest payable $ 263,377              
Amortization of premiums and bond issuance costs 162,468              
Change in claims and judgments payable 102,290              
Change in inventories (215,195)            312,940              

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 48,508,543        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 38,878,974       $ 37,489,077       $ 36,702,246       $ (786,831)           
  Licenses and permits 78,700              78,700              106,541            27,841              
  Intergovernmental 18,324,700       23,085,544       20,910,262       (2,175,282)        
  Charges for services 13,765,265       13,663,236       13,263,689       (399,547)           
  Fines and forfeits 45,000              55,000              72,216              17,216              
  Gifts and contributions -                    -                    3,185                3,185                
  Investment earnings 10,000,000       10,000,000       11,476,422       1,476,422         
  Miscellaneous 6,606,932         7,584,384         2,625,958         (4,958,426)        

      Total Revenues $ 87,699,571       $ 91,955,941       $ 85,160,519       $ (6,795,422)        

Expenditures
  Current
    General government
      Commissioners $ 713,628            $ 796,584            $ 627,315            $ 169,269            
      Courts services 181,110            206,110            253,901            (47,791)             
      County administration 1,342,206         1,788,673         1,084,202         704,471            

OMB di i i d i i t ti /OPED 1 848 817 2 944 302 2 001 958 942 344      OMB division administration/OPED 1,848,817         2,944,302       2,001,958       942,344            
      Public service and revenue admin 976,165            1,058,583         1,001,266         57,317              
      Service and license centers 1,434,174         1,516,227         1,405,226         111,001            
      County treasurer 4,427,511         6,271,481         4,432,308         1,839,173         
      County assessor 3,508,736         3,927,219         3,317,457         609,762            
      Accounting and auditing 2,698,085         3,310,370         2,535,949         774,421            
      Information technology 8,815,934         10,677,830       9,295,535         1,382,295         
      Operations management services 15,279,181       17,747,988       14,695,484       3,052,504         
      Employee relations 2,674,798         2,798,784         2,417,215         381,569            
      Attorney 8,757,182         9,484,520         8,820,894         663,626            
      Water resources 2,175,827         3,009,285         2,157,479         851,806            
      Surveyor 685,855            704,350            678,946            25,404              
      Physical development administration 2,275,271         2,657,531         2,051,029         606,502            
      Communications 954,685            1,028,678         752,379            276,299            
      GIS 968,628            816,021            834,156            (18,135)             
      County-wide operations 3,381,044         13,864,199       3,544,777         10,319,422       

    Total general government $ 63,098,837       $ 84,608,735       $ 61,907,476       $ 22,701,259       

    Public safety
      Sheriff $ 18,431,458       $ 20,491,112       $ 18,658,750       $ 1,832,362         
      Coroner 454,842            471,653            471,653            -                    

    Total public safety $ 18,886,300       $ 20,962,765       $ 19,130,403       $ 1,832,362         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Expenditures
  Current (Continued)
    Culture and recreation
      Historical society $ 135,722            $ 135,722            $ 115,722            $ 20,000              
      County fair 132,523            132,523            132,523            -                    
      Intermodal transportation -                    2,419,145         -                    2,419,145         

    Total culture and recreation $ 268,245            $ 2,687,390         $ 248,245            $ 2,439,145         

    Conservation of natural resources
      Soil and water conservation $ 291,394            $ 291,394            $ 291,394            $ -                    
      Farmland and natural area program 135,232            9,181,708         4,059,874         5,121,834         

    Total conservation of natural
     resources $ 426,626            $ 9,473,102         $ 4,351,268         $ 5,121,834         

    Economic development
      Administration $ 3,126,035         $ 3,126,035         $ 2,306,972         $ 819,063            

     Total economic development $ 3,126,035         $ 3,126,035         $ 2,306,972         $ 819,063            

      Total Expenditures $ 85,806,043       $ 120,858,027     $ 87,944,364       $ 32,913,663       

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 1,893,528         $ (28,902,086)      $ (2,783,845)        $ 26,118,241       

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -                    $ 136,875            $ 136,875            $ -                    
  Transfers out -                    (13,197,516)      (13,197,516)      -                    
  Proceeds from sale of assets -                    -                    75,589              75,589              

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ -                    $ (13,060,641)      $ (12,985,052)      $ 75,589              

  Change in Fund Balance $ 1,893,528         $ (41,962,727)      $ (15,768,897)      $ 26,193,830       

Fund Balance - January 1 97,145,087       97,145,087       97,145,087       -                    
Increase (decrease) in reserved for
 inventories -                    -                    (3,501)               (3,501)               

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 99,038,615       $ 55,182,360     $ 81,372,689     $ 26,190,329       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

HIGHWAY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 12,748,408       $ 12,903,143       $ 13,856,378       $ 953,235            
  Licenses and permits 120,000            120,000            159,385            39,385              
  Intergovernmental 54,870,618       91,505,291       26,324,650       (65,180,641)     
  Charges for services 1,209,839         1,209,839         1,209,839         -                   
  Miscellaneous 96,512              489,160            384,096            (105,064)          

      Total Revenues $ 69,045,377       $ 106,227,433   $ 41,934,348     $ (64,293,085)     

Expenditures
  Current
    Highway and streets
      Administration $ 355,311            $ 328,620            $ 286,333            $ 42,287              
      Maintenance 4,867,061         4,968,978         4,756,702         212,276            
      Construction 71,410,432       115,162,157     51,500,242       63,661,915       

      Total Expenditures $ 76,632,804       $ 120,459,755   $ 56,543,277     $ 63,916,478       

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (7,587,427)       $ (14,232,322)   $ (14,608,929)   $ (376,607)         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 4,910,000         $ 5,665,062         $ 5,665,062         $ -                   
  Transfers out (1,654,772)       (1,654,772)       (1,654,772)       -                   

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ 3,255,228        $ 4,010,290       $ 4,010,290       $ -                  

  Change in Fund Balance $ (4,332,199)       $ (10,222,032)   $ (10,598,639)   $ (376,607)         

Fund Balance - January 1 6,419,457        6,419,457       6,419,457       -                  
Increase (decrease) in reserved for
 inventories -                  -                 (211,694)        (211,694)         

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 2,087,258        $ (3,802,575)     $ (4,390,876)     $ (588,301)         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 50,738,152       $ 51,625,658       $ 49,460,198       $ (2,165,460)        
  Intergovernmental 73,781,911       76,072,425       77,649,633       1,577,208         
  Charges for services 8,324,992         8,324,992         8,415,041         90,049              
  Miscellaneous 2,328,580         2,387,822         2,406,519         18,697              

      Total Revenues $ 135,173,635     $ 138,410,897     $ 137,931,391     $ (479,506)           

Expenditures
  Current
    General government
      Veterans service officer $ 656,219            $ 711,841            $ 627,221            $ 84,620              

    Total general government $ 656,219            $ 711,841            $ 627,221            $ 84,620              

    Public safety
      Community corrections $ 18,606,402       $ 19,252,783       $ 17,796,775       $ 1,456,008         

    Total public safety $ 18,606,402       $ 19,252,783       $ 17,796,775       $ 1,456,008         

    Human services
      Income maintenance $ 35,348,996       $ 36,049,047       $ 32,224,600       $ 3,824,447         
      Social services 65,054,385       66,845,680       64,528,604       2,317,076         

    Total human services $ 100,403,381     $ 102,894,727     $ 96,753,204       $ 6,141,523         

    Health
      Public health $ 14,738,397       $ 15,340,903       $ 14,344,511       $ 996,392            

    Total health $ 14,738,397       $ 15,340,903       $ 14,344,511       $ 996,392            

    Conservation
      Cooperative extension $ 382,578            $ 438,546            $ 387,779            $ 50,767              

    Total conservation $ 382,578            $ 438,546            $ 387,779            $ 50,767              

    Economic development
      Community development $ 3,141,004         $ 4,217,121         $ 4,040,919         $ 176,202            

    Total economic development $ 3,141,004         $ 4,217,121         $ 4,040,919         $ 176,202            

    Total Expenditures $ 137,927,981     $ 142,855,921     $ 133,950,409     $ 8,905,512         

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (2,754,346)        $ (4,445,024)        $ 3,980,982         $ 8,426,006         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
42



DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -                    $ 14,031              $ 14,031              $ -                    
  Transfers out -                    (136,875)           (136,875)           -                    

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ -                    $ (122,844)           $ (122,844)           $ -                    

  Change in Fund Balance $ (2,754,346)        $ (4,567,868)        $ 3,858,138         $ 8,426,006         

Fund Balance - January 1 49,248,701       49,248,701       49,248,701       -                    

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 46,494,355       $ 44,680,833     $ 53,106,839     $ 8,426,006         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COUNTY PARKS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 3,819,196         $ 3,868,651         $ 3,697,050         $ (171,601)          
  Licenses and permits 35,250              35,250              56,460              21,210              
  Intergovernmental 3,817,800         15,163,236       10,569,783       (4,593,453)       
  Charges for services 620,464            630,464            769,784            139,320            
  Fines and forfeits -                   -                   10,217              10,217              
  Gifts and contributions -                   -                   2,120                2,120                
  Investment earnings -                   -                   20,234              20,234              

      Total Revenues $ 8,292,710        $ 19,697,601     $ 15,125,648     $ (4,571,953)       

Expenditures
  Current
    Culture and recreation
      Parks $ 10,252,302       $ 30,153,115       $ 20,065,210       $ 10,087,905       

    Total Expenditures $ 10,252,302       $ 30,153,115     $ 20,065,210     $ 10,087,905       

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (1,959,592)       $ (10,455,514)   $ (4,939,562)     $ 5,515,952        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -                   $ 6,844,883         $ 6,844,883         $ -                   

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ -                  $ 6,844,883       $ 6,844,883       $ -                  

  Change in Fund Balance $ (1,959,592)       $ (3,610,631)     $ 1,905,321       $ 5,515,952        

Fund Balance - January 1 4,723,875        4,723,875       4,723,875       -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 2,764,283        $ 1,113,244       $ 6,629,196       $ 5,515,952        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2008

Governmental
Activities -

Geographic Employee
Information Services Reserve

System Internal
Enterprise Fund Service Fund

Assets

Current assets:
  Cash and pooled investments $ 197,468                $ 16,622,191         
  Due from other funds -                        3,181,165           

    Total current assets $ 197,468                $ 19,803,356         

      Total Assets $ 197,468              $ 19,803,356         

Liabilities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
45

Current liabilities:
  Compensated absences payable - current $ -                        $ 328,576              
  Due to other funds -                        3,238                  
  Due to other governments 1                           -                      

        Total current liabilities $ 1                           $ 331,814              

Noncurrent liabilities:
  Compensated absences payable - long-term $ -                        $ 17,445,369         
  Net OPEB liability -                        2,026,173           

        Total noncurrent liabilities $ -                        $ 19,471,542         

    Total Liabilities $ 1                           $ 19,803,356         

Net Assets
    Restricted for
      Equipment replacement $ 197,467                $ -                      

    Total Net Assets $ 197,467              $ -                     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Governmental
Activities -

Geographic Employee
Information Services Reserve

System Internal
Enterprise Fund Service Fund

Operating Revenues
  Charges for services $ 20,309             $ 2,777,690      

      Total Operating Revenues $ 20,309             $ 2,777,690      

Operating Expenses
    Personal services $ -                       $ 1,151,754      
    OPEB expense -                       1,625,936      
    Other services and charges 40,082             -                     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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      Total Operating Expenses $ 40,082             $ 2,777,690      

  Operating income $ (19,773)            $ -                     

                 Change in Net Assets $ (19,773)            $ -                     

Net Assets - January 1 217,240           -                     

Net Assets - December 31 $ 197,467           $ -                     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Governmental
Activities -
Employee

Services Reserve
Internal

Service Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
  Receipts from customers and users $ 20,309            $ -                  
  Receipts from internal services provided -                  472,832           
  Payments to suppliers (40,092)          -                  
  Payments to internal services used -                  (2,591,833)      

    Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (19,783)          $ (2,119,001)      

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ (19,783)          $ (2,119,001)      

Cash and Cash Equivalents at January 1 217,251          18,741,192      

Cash and Cash Equivalents at December 31 $ 197,468          $ 16,622,191      

Geographic
Information

System
Enterprise Fund

q , , ,

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
 Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
  Operating income (loss) $ (19,773)          $ -                  

  Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
   provided by (used in) operating activities
    Increase (decrease) in due to other governments $ (10)                  $ -                  

    Total adjustments $ (10)                  $ -                  

      Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $ (19,783)          $ -                  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY  FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

Private-Purpose Agency
Trusts Funds

Assets

  Cash and pooled investments $ 5,051,496         $ 27,288,393         
  Departmental cash -                   247,878              
  Accounts receivable 1,171                38,833                
  Due from other governments 630,348            159,755              

      Total Assets $ 5,683,015       $ 27,734,859        

Liabilities

  Accounts payable $ 190,429            $ 1,835,041           
  Salaries payable -                   147,067              
  Accrued expenses 71,743              -                     
  Due to other governments 4,219,601         25,752,751         
  Advance from other governments 762,021            -                     

      Total Liabilities $ 5,243,794       $ 27,734,859        

Net Assets

  Net assets, held in trust for other purposes $ 439,221            

      Total Net Assets $ 439,221          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2008

Private-Purpose
Trusts

ADDITIONS:

State Grants
  Mn Dept of Trial Courts $ 3,436,287         
  Mn Dept of Environmental Assistance 900,988            
Payments from counties 330,226            
Other agencies 17,200              
Miscellaneous 6,617                
Investment earnings:
  Interest 100,655            

Total additions $ 4,791,973         

DEDUCTIONS:

Judicial District expense $ 3,436,287         
Solid waste expenses 1,419,316         
Emergency preparedness expenses 36,326              

Total deductions $ 4 891 929Total deductions $ 4,891,929         

Change in net assets $ (99,956)             

Net assets - January 1 539,177            

Net assets - December 31 $ 439,221            

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DAKOTA COUNTY 
MINNESOTA 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 2008 
 

 58 
 

Revenues from property taxes are recognized in the period for which the taxes were levied, to the extent they are 
collected in the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Property 
taxes receivable but not available are reported as deferred revenue and will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year 
that they become available.  Fines and penalties and property forfeitures are recognized in the period received.   

 
Intergovernmental 

 
Government-mandated nonexchange transactions occur when a government at one level provides resources to a 
government at another level and requires that government to use them for a specific purpose.  The provider 
government establishes purpose restrictions and also may establish time requirements.  Federal and state grants 
mandating that the County perform particular programs are government-mandated nonexchange transactions.  
Revenues are recognized when eligibility and time requirements are met, usually when the corresponding expenditure 
is incurred. 

 
Voluntary nonexchange transactions result from legislative or contractual agreements, such as grants, entitlements, 
appropriations, and donations.   The provider may establish purpose restrictions or eligibility requirements.   
Revenues are recognized in the year to which they apply according to the statute or contract.  Gifts and contributions 
from individuals are also considered voluntary nonexchange transactions and are generally recognized when 
received. 

 
Tax credits paid by the state are included in intergovernmental revenues and are recognized as revenue in the fiscal 
year that they become available.  Subject to the availability criterion, state-aid highway allotments for highway 
maintenance and construction are recognized as revenue in the year of allotment. 

 
  Exchange Transactions 
 

Special assessments levied against benefiting properties are recognized under the modified accrual basis when 
available to finance current expenditures.  Other revenues, such as licenses and permits, charges for services, and 
investment income are recognized as revenue when earned.  
 

   
II.   Stewardship, compliance, and accountability 
 

A.   Budgetary information 
 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all governmental 
funds except Law Library and Attorney Forfeiture special revenue funds and the private-purpose trust funds, which are 
not budgeted.  All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 
 
In accordance with state law, the County Board adopts the proposed property levy on or before September 15.  The 
County Administrator presents the recommended budget to the County Board who then holds public hearings on the 
proposed budgets with departments during October, November and December.  In accordance with truth in taxation 
legislation, the County Board holds a public hearing for the budget on the first Thursday in December.  The budget is 
adopted following the truth in taxation public meeting, typically during the final meeting of the year. 

 
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department.  Transfers of appropriations between divisions 
require the approval of the Board or County Administrator.  The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which 
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the department level.  The Board made several supplemental 
budgetary appropriations throughout the year.  The material supplemental budgetary appropriations were: 

  
 
 
 















































DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Acturial Value of Accrued Actuarial Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of

Valuation Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date ( a ) ( b ) ( b-a ) ( a/b ) ( c ) ( ( b-a ) / c )

1/1/2006 $0 $10,103,661 $10,103,661 0.00% $101,860,878 9.92%
1/1/2008 $0 $14,588,881 $14,588,881 0.00% $112,903,961 12.92%

See Note IV, I, Post-Employment Benefits, for more information.

81



DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 2,000,000         $ 2,000,000         $ 1,999,727         $ (273)                 
  Investment earnings -                   532,874            1,951,020         1,418,146         
      Total Revenues $ 2,000,000        $ 2,532,874       $ 3,950,747       $ 1,417,873        

Expenditures
    Debt service
      Principal $ 7,981,500         $ 8,490,000         $ 14,155,000       $ (5,665,000)       
      Interest 3,776,519         3,921,168         5,103,038         (1,181,870)       
      Administrative - fiscal charges -                   -                   4,900                (4,900)              

    Total Expenditures $ 11,758,019       $ 12,411,168     $ 19,262,938     $ (6,851,770)       

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (9,758,019)       $ (9,878,294)     $ (15,312,191)   $ (5,433,897)       

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 9,758,019         $ 9,878,294         $ 9,878,294         $ -                   

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ 9,758,019        $ 9,878,294       $ 9,878,294       $ -                  

  Change in Fund Balance $ -                  $ -                 $ (5,433,897)     $ (5,433,897)       

Fund Balance - January 1 39,109,079       39,109,079     39,109,079     -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 39,109,079       $ 39,109,079     $ 33,675,182     $ (5,433,897)       
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 7,438,641         $ 7,438,641         $ 7,158,254         $ (280,387)          
  Intergovernmental -                   -                   566,141            566,141            

      Total Revenues $ 7,438,641        $ 7,438,641       $ 7,724,395       $ 285,754           

Expenditures
  Current
    Capital outlay
      Capital outlay $ 16,776,760       $ 27,453,200       $ 8,561,029         $ 18,892,171       

    Total capital outlay $ 16,776,760       $ 27,453,200     $ 8,561,029       18,892,171       

    Total Expenditures $ 16,776,760       $ 27,453,200     $ 8,561,029       $ 18,892,171       

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (9,338,119)       $ (20,014,559)   $ (836,634)        $ 19,177,925       

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -                   $ 1,281,611         $ 1,281,611         $ -                   
  Transfers out -                   (8,928,461)       (8,928,461)       -                   

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ -                  $ (7,646,850)     $ (7,646,850)     $ -                  

  Change in Fund Balance $ (9,338,119)       $ (27,661,409)   $ (8,483,484)     $ 19,177,925       

Fund Balance - January 1 28,487,782       28,487,782     28,487,782     -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 19,149,663       $ 826,373          $ 20,004,298     $ 19,177,925       
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2008

Special Revenue Funds Total Nonmajor
County Environmental Regional Law Attorney Governmental
Library Management Rail Library Forfeiture Funds

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 722,324              $ 24,827,759    $ 2,713,346        $ 1,113,752    $ 222,569        $ 29,599,750      
Petty cash and change funds 1,950                  -                 -                   20               -                1,970               
Taxes receivable
  Prior 238,630              -                 -                   -              -                238,630           
Accounts receivable 217,117              370,388         21,783             1,868          183               611,339           
Due from other funds 24,033                3,312             -                   8,642          15,000          50,987             
Due from other governments -                     -                 530,987           56,389         -                587,376           

      Total Assets $ 1,204,054           $ 25,201,459  $ 3,266,116      $ 1,180,671  $ 237,752        $ 31,090,052    

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 106,326              $ 198,764         $ 82,900             $ 37,845         $ 30                 $ 425,865           
  Salaries payable 258,991              32,285           -                   5,313          -                296,589           
  Due to other funds 142,449              147,112         283,008           39               20,772          593,380           
  Due to other governments 51,579                85,380           -                   755             103               137,817           
  Deferred revenue - unavailable 197,129              -                 -                   -              -                197,129           
  Deferred revenue - unearned -                     642,412         -                   -              -                642,412           

    Total Liabilities $ 756,474              $ 1,105,953      $ 365,908           $ 43,952         $ 20,905          $ 2,293,192        

Fund Balances
  Unreserved  Unreserved
    Designated for future expenditures $ -                     $ 23,989,761    $ 2,900,208        $ 419,699       $ 216,847        $ 27,526,515      
    Designated for cash flows 302,081              -                 -                   482,000       -                784,081           
    Designated for capital improvements -                     -                 -                   235,000       -                235,000           
    Designated for petty cash and change funds 1,950                  -                 -                   20               -                1,970               
    Designated for capital equipment 56,977                -                 -                   -              -                56,977             
    Designated for budget incentive program 86,572                105,745         -                   -              -                192,317           

    Total Fund Balances $ 447,580              $ 24,095,506    $ 2,900,208        $ 1,136,719    $ 216,847        $ 28,796,860      

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,204,054           $ 25,201,459  $ 3,266,116      $ 1,180,671  $ 237,752        $ 31,090,052    
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Special Revenue Funds Total Nonmajor
County Environmental Regional Law Attorney Governmental
Library Management Rail Library Forfeiture Funds

Revenues
  Taxes $ 9,615,381       $ -                $ 997,349           $ -               $ -               $ 10,612,730      
  License and permits -                  631,701         -                   -               -               631,701           
  Intergovernmental 1,455,667       1,122,780      1,152,309        16,701         -               3,747,457        
  Charges for services 645,723          5,354,435      -                   539,663       -               6,539,821        
  Fines and forfeits -                  -                -                   -               31,923         31,923             
  Gifts and contributions 29,585            -                -                   -               -               29,585             
  Investment earnings 7,418              -                80,925             -               -               88,343             
  Miscellaneous 140,313          151,949         -                   -               83,748         376,010           

      Total Revenues $ 11,894,087     $ 7,260,865      $ 2,230,583        $ 556,364       $ 115,671       $ 22,057,570      

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $ -                  $ -                $ -                   $ 481,766       $ 57,913         $ 539,679           
    Sanitation -                  6,660,486      -                   -               -               6,660,486        
    Culture and recreation 12,198,324     -                -                   -               -               12,198,324      
    Economic development -                  -                1,304,127        -               -               1,304,127        

      Total Expenditures $ 12,198,324     $ 6,660,486      $ 1,304,127        $ 481,766       $ 57,913         $ 20,702,616      

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (304,237)         $ 600,379         $ 926,456           $ 74,598         $ 57,758         $ 1,354,954        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 95,715            $ 1,153           $ -                 $ -             $ -               $ 96,868             Transfers in $ 95,715            $ 1,153           $                  $              $                $ 96,868           

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 95,715            $ 1,153             $ -                   $ -               $ -               $ 96,868             

  Net Change in Fund Balance $ (208,522)         $ 601,532         $ 926,456           $ 74,598         $ 57,758         $ 1,451,822        

Fund Balance - January 1 656,102          23,493,974    1,973,752        1,062,121    159,089       27,345,038      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 447,580          $ 24,095,506  $ 2,900,208      $ 1,136,719  $ 216,847       $ 28,796,860    
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COUNTY LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ 9,831,506         $ 10,092,534       $ 9,615,381         $ (477,153)          
  Intergovernmental 1,158,573         1,158,573         1,455,667         297,094            
  Charges for services 536,579            543,579            645,723            102,144            
  Gifts and contributions -                   28,617              29,585              968                   
  Investment earnings -                   -                   7,418                7,418                
  Miscellaneous 126,265            155,822            140,313            (15,509)            

      Total Revenues $ 11,652,923       $ 11,979,125     $ 11,894,087     $ (85,038)           

Expenditures
  Current
    Culture and recreation
      Regional library $ 11,980,575       $ 12,726,816       $ 12,198,324       $ 528,492            

    Total Expenditures $ 11,980,575       $ 12,726,816     $ 12,198,324     $ 528,492           

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (327,652)         $ (747,691)        $ (304,237)        $ 443,454           

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -                   $ 95,715              $ 95,715              $ -                   

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ -                  $ 95,715            $ 95,715            $ -                  

  Change in Fund Balance $ (327,652)         $ (651,976)        $ (208,522)        $ 443,454           

Fund Balance - January 1 656,102           656,102          656,102          -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 328,450           $ 4,126              $ 447,580          $ 443,454           
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Licenses and permits $ 748,067            $ 748,067            $ 631,701            $ (116,366)          
  Intergovernmental 1,120,000         1,120,000         1,122,780         2,780                
  Charges for services 4,675,981         4,675,981         5,354,435         678,454            
  Miscellaneous 87,245              87,245              151,949            64,704              

      Total Revenues $ 6,631,293        $ 6,631,293       $ 7,260,865       $ 629,572           

Expenditures
  Current
    Sanitation
      Solid waste $ 7,459,659         $ 7,512,843         $ 6,660,486         $ 852,357            

    Total Expenditures $ 7,459,659        $ 7,512,843       $ 6,660,486       $ 852,357           

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (828,366)         $ (881,550)        $ 600,379          $ 1,481,929        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -                   $ 1,153                $ 1,153                $ -                   

    Total Other Financing Sources
     (Uses) $ -                  $ 1,153              $ 1,153              $ -                  

  Change in Fund Balance $ (828,366)         $ (880,397)        $ 601,532          $ 1,481,929        

Fund Balance - January 1 23,493,974       23,493,974     23,493,974     -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 22,665,608       $ 22,613,577     $ 24,095,506     $ 1,481,929        
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REGIONAL RAIL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
  Taxes $ -                   $ 1,040,580         $ 997,349            $ (43,231)            
  Intergovernmental -                   2,561,051         1,152,309         (1,408,742)       
  Investment earnings -                   -                   80,925              80,925              

      Total Revenues $ -                  $ 3,601,631       $ 2,230,583       $ (1,371,048)       

Expenditures
  Current
    Economic development
      Community development $ -                   $ 2,554,685         $ 1,010,934         $ 1,543,751         
      Administration -                   1,165,580         293,193            872,387            

    Total Expenditures $ -                  $ 3,720,265       $ 1,304,127       $ 2,416,138        

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ -                  $ (118,634)        $ 926,456          $ 1,045,090        

  Change in Fund Balance $ -                  $ (118,634)        $ 926,456          $ 1,045,090        

Fund Balance - January 1 1,973,752        1,973,752       1,973,752       -                  

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 1,973,752        $ 1,855,118       $ 2,900,208       $ 1,045,090        
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY  NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2008

Rural Solid Waste Domestic
First Judicial Solid Management Preparedness

District Commission Coordination Bd Team     
Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ -                    $ 27,891              $ 4,923,008         $ 100,597            $ 5,051,496           
  Accounts receivable -                    -                    -                    1,171                1,171                  
  Due from other governments 630,348            -                    -                    -                    630,348              

      Total Assets $ 630,348            $ 27,891            $ 4,923,008       $ 101,768            $ 5,683,015         

Liabilities

  Accounts payable $ 243                   $ 8,376                $ 181,313            $ 497                   $ 190,429              
  Accrued expenses 71,743              -                    -                    -                    71,743                
  Due to other governments 558,362            -                    3,661,239         -                    4,219,601           
  Advance from other governments -                    -                    762,021            -                    762,021              

      Total Liabilities $ 630,348            $ 8,376                $ 4,604,573         $ 497                   $ 5,243,794           

Net Assets

  Net assets, held in trust for other purposes $ -                    $ 19,515              $ 318,435            $ 101,271            $ 439,221              

      Total Net Assets $ -                   $ 19,515            $ 318,435          $ 101,271            $ 439,221            
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Rural Solid Waste Domestic Total
First Judicial Solid Management Preparedness Private-

District Commission Coordination Bd Team Purpose
Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund

ADDITIONS:

State Grants
  Mn Dept of Trial Courts $ 3,436,287         $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ 3,436,287         
  Mn Dept of Environmental Assistance -                    -                    900,988            -                    900,988            
Payments from other governments -                    -                    251,996            78,230              330,226            
Other agencies -                    17,200              -                    -                    17,200              
Miscellaneous -                    -                    3,172                3,445                6,617                
Investment earnings:
  Interest -                    1,252                99,403              -                    100,655            

Total additions $ 3,436,287         $ 18,452              $ 1,255,559         $ 81,675              $ 4,791,973         

DEDUCTIONS:

Judical District expense $ 3,436,287         $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ 3,436,287         
Solid waste expenses -                    22,442              1,396,874         -                    1,419,316         
Emergency preparedness expenses -                    -                    -                    36,326              36,326              

Total deductions $ 3,436,287         $ 22,442              $ 1,396,874         $ 36,326              $ 4,891,929         

Change in net assets $ -                    $ (3,990)               $ (141,315)           $ 45,349              $ (99,956)             

Net assets - January 1 -                    23,505              459,750            55,922              539,177            

31 $ $ 19 1 $ 318 43 $ 101 2 1 $ 439 221Net assets - December 31 $ -                   $ 19,515            $ 318,435          $ 101,271            $ 439,221          
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

4-H

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 254,130                    $ 234,941                    $ 181,958                    $ 307,113                    
Accounts receivable -                           165                           -                           165                           
Due from other governments 866                           2,382                        1,997                        1,251                        

$ 254,996                   $ 237,488                  $ 183,955                   $ 308,529                   

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 4,240                        $ 177,965                    $ 157,434                    $ 24,771                      
Due to other governments 250,756                    240,043                    207,041                    283,758                    

$ 254,996                   $ 418,008                  $ 364,475                   $ 308,529                   

AGRICULTURAL CONSERVATION

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 213,315 $ 70,068 $ 125,343 $ 158,040Cash and pooled investments $ 213,315 $ 70,068 $ 125,343 $ 158,040

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 213,315 $ 70,068 $ 125,343 $ 158,040

ARBITRAGE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 50,904 $ -                         $ -                          $ 50,904

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 50,904 $ -                         $ -                          $ 50,904
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

ASSURANCE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 4,455 $ 26,337 $ 21,941 $ 8,851

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 4,455 $ 26,337 $ 21,941 $ 8,851

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 69,207                     $ 12,349,486 $ 12,270,046 $ 148,647                   

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 69,207                     $ 12,349,486 $ 12,270,046 $ 148,647                   

CONSERVATIONCONSERVATION

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                          $ 140,135 $ 140,135 $ -                          

Liabilities

Due to other funds $ -                          $ 140,135 $ 140,135 $ -                          

DAKOTA-SCOTT WSA

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                          $ 3,091,044 $ 3,091,044 $ -                          

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                          $ 3,091,044 $ 3,091,044 $ -                          
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

DUI FORFEITURE FUND

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 11,091 $ 4,099 $ 9,379 $ 5,811                       

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 11,091 $ 4,099 $ 9,379 $ 5,811                       

ELECTRONIC LICENSE SYSTEM

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 134 $ 8,454 $ 8,469 $ 119                          

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 134 $ 8,454 $ 8,469 $ 119                          

FORFEITED TAX

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 385,576 $ 240,250 $ 1,096 $ 624,730                   

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ -                           $ 1,096 $ 1,096 $ -                           
Due to other governments 385,576 325,071 85,917 624,730

      Total Liabilities $ 385,576 $ 326,167 $ 87,013 $ 624,730

FORFEITED TAX ASSURANCE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                           $ 7,206 $ 7,206 $ -                          

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                           $ 7,206 $ 7,206 $ -                          
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

HISTORICAL SOCIETY

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                           $ 241,038 $ 241,038 $ -                           
Due from other governments 44,741 111,913 82,810 73,844

      Total Assets $ 44,741 $ 352,951 $ 323,848 $ 73,844                     

Liabilities

Salaries payable $ 2,764 $ 8,271 $ 6,699 $ 4,336
Due to other governments 41,977 69,508 41,977 69,508

      Total Liabilities $ 44,741 $ 77,779 $ 48,676 $ 73,844

LOCAL COLLABORATIVES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 999,946 $ 730,313 $ 1,297,851 $ 432,408                   

LiabilitiesLiabilities

Accounts payable $ 999,946 $ 730,313 $ 1,297,851 $ 432,408                   

METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD (MESB)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                           $ 814,886                    $ 814,886                    $ -                           
Due from other governments -                           850,766                    766,106                    84,660                      

      Total Assets $ -                          $ 1,665,652 $ 1,580,992 $ 84,660

Liabilities

Salaries payable $ -                           $ 51,962 $ 32,698 $ 19,264
Due to other governments -                           67,186 1,790                        65,396

      Total Liabilities $ -                          $ 119,148 $ 34,488 $ 84,660
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

METRO ALLIANCE FOR HEALTHY FAMILIES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 994,669 $ 1,391,924 $ 1,034,950 $ 1,351,643                

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 944,385                    $ 3,606,032 $ 3,737,190                 $ 813,227
Salaries payable 50,119                      123,467 50,119                      123,467
Due to other governments 165                           415,020 236                           414,949

      Total Liabilities $ 994,669 $ 4,144,519 $ 3,787,545 $ 1,351,643

METRO COUNCIL

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                          $ 3,768,065 $ 3,768,065 $ -                          

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ - $ 3,768,065 $ 3,768,065 $ -Due to other governments $ -                          $ 3,768,065 $ 3,768,065 $ -                          

METRO TRANSIT

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                          $ 4,176,854 $ 4,176,854 $ -                          

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                          $ 4,176,854 $ 4,176,854 $ -                          

METROPOLITAN INTER-COUNTY ASSOCIATION (MICA)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 322,134 $ 514,207 $ 500,000 $ 336,341                   

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 322,134 $ 514,207 $ 500,000 $ 336,341                   
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

MINNESOTA CONSERVATION FUND

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 18,662 $ 70,068 $ 74,290 $ 14,440                     

Liabilities
Due to other governments $ 18,662 $ 70,068 $ 74,290 $ 14,440                     

MOSQUITO CONTROL

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                          $ 2,248,598 $ 2,248,598 $ -                          

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                          $ 2,248,598 $ 2,248,598 $ -                          

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                          $ 54,989,238 $ 54,989,238 $ -                          

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ -                          $ 54,989,238 $ 54,989,238 $ -                          

SCHOOL DISTRICTS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                           $ 193,413,778 $ 193,413,778 $ -                          

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                           $ 193,413,778 $ 193,413,778 $ -                          
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

SHERIFF CIVIL FEES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 40,911 $ 490,950 $ 488,247 $ 43,614                     

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 40,911 $ 490,950 $ 488,247 $ 43,614                     

SHERIFF EVIDENCE FUND

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 954 $ 336 $ -                              $ 1,290                       

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 954 $ 336 $ -                              $ 1,290                       

SHERIFF INMATE FUNDS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 41 $ -                           $ -                           $ 41                            

Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 41 $ -                           $ -                           $ 41                            

SHERIFF TRUST FUND

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 83,897 $ 13,157,428 $ 13,176,354 $ 64,971                     

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 83,897 $ 13,157,428 $ 13,176,354 $ 64,971                     
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

SHERIFF 911 DISTRIBUTION

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 429 $ -                           $ 429 $ -                          

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 429 $ -                           $ 429 $ -                          

SOCIAL WELFARE

Assets

Departmental cash $ 245,727 $ 2,931,116 $ 2,928,965 $ 247,878                   

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 245,727 $ 2,931,116 $ 2,928,965 $ 247,878                   

STATE REVENUE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 407                          $ 443,168 $ 443,575 $ -                          

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 407                          $ 443,168 $ 443,575 $ -                          
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

TAXES AND PENALTIES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 22,220,697 $ 593,642,422 $ 592,123,689 $ 23,739,430
Accounts receivable 37,862 38,668 37,862 38,668

      Total Assets $ 22,258,559 $ 593,681,090 $ 592,161,551 $ 23,778,098

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 164,774 $ 1,792,419 $ 1,804,447 $ 152,746
Unapportioned taxes payable -                           59,979,597 59,979,597 -                               
Due to other funds -                           53,556 53,556 -                               
Due to other governments 22,093,785 589,740,932 588,209,365 23,625,352

      Total Liabilities $ 22,258,559 $ 651,566,504 $ 650,046,965 $ 23,778,098

TOWNS AND CITIES

AssetsAssets

Cash and pooled investments $ 415 $ 247,377,916 $ 247,378,331 $ -                           

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 415 $ 247,377,916 $ 247,378,331 $ -                           

WATERSHED LEVY

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ -                           $ 49,380 $ 49,380 $ -                          

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ -                           $ 49,380 $ 49,380 $ -                          
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

TOTAL ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 25,671,974               $ 1,133,692,589          $ 1,132,076,170          $ 27,288,393               
Departmental cash 245,727                    2,931,116                 2,928,965                 247,878                    
Accounts receivable 37,862                      38,833                      37,862                      38,833                      
Due from other governments 45,607                      965,061                    850,913                    159,755                    

     Total Assets $ 26,001,170               $ 1,137,627,599        $ 1,135,893,910        $ 27,734,859              

Liabilities  
 

Accounts payable $ 2,583,653                 $ 64,310,800               $ 65,059,412               $ 1,835,041                 
Salaries payable 52,883                      183,700                    89,516                      147,067                    
Unapportioned taxes payable -                           59,979,597               59,979,597               -                           
Due to other funds -                           193,691                    193,691                    -                           
Due to other governments 23,364,634               1,072,042,581          1,069,654,464          25,752,751               

      Total Liabilities $ 26,001,170               $ 1,196,710,369        $ 1,194,976,680        $ 27,734,859              
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Assets

  Cash and investments $ 1,241,360
  Taxes receivable
    Current 66,104
  Accounts receivable 21,000
  Due from other governments 97,328

      Total Assets $ 1,425,792

Liabilities

  Current liabilities
    Accounts payable $ 65,282
    Due to other governments 188,304

    Total Liabilities $ 253,586

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

VERMILLION RIVER WATERSHED DISTRICT
GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET AND

    Total Liabilities $ 253,586

Fund Balance/Net Assets

      Unreserved - Undesignated/ Unrestricted $ 1,172,206

    Total Fund Balance/Net Assets $ 1,172,206

     Total Liabilities and 
     Fund Balance/Net Assets $ 1,425,792

There are no capital assets nor long term liabilities.  There is no difference
to reconcile between modified and full accrual.
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Revenues
  Taxes $ 1,032,731
  Intergovernmental 284,669
  Investment earnings 36,722

      Total Revenues $ 1,354,122

Expenditures/Expenses
  Current
    Conservation of natural resources $ 1,017,956

  Net Change in Fund Balance/
   Net Assets $ 336,166

Fund Balance/Net Assets - January 1 836,040

Fund Balance/Net Assets - December 31 $ 1,172,206

AND GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

VERMILLION RIVER WATERSHED DISTRICT
GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

There are no capital outlays nor revenues that are not current financial resources.  There is no difference
to reconcile between modified and full accrual.
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Governmental
Funds

Shared Revenue
  State
    Highway users tax $ 3,413,734        
    PERA rate reimbursement 333,927           
    Disparity reduction aid 1,879               
    Police aid 495,645           
    Agricultural preserve credit 48,661             
    County program aid 10,817,293      
    Market value credit 4,700,796        

    Total Shared Revenue $ 19,811,935      

Reimbursement for Services
  State
    Minnesota Department of Human 
     Services $ 12,955,068      

Payments
  Local
    City contributions $ 1,640,508        
    Metropolitan council 9,885,057        
    City and agency share of construction 10,910,638      
    MELSA 169,521           
    Other contributions 476,753           
    Local contributions 308,395           
    Payments in lieu of taxes 62,905             

    Total Payments $ 23,453,777      

Grants
  State
    Minnesota Department of
      Public Safety $ 360,098           
      Transportation 2,551,605        
      Health 1,346,610        
      Natural Resources 571,301           
      Human Services 24,802,858      
     Water and Soil Resources Board 96,903             
     Trade and Economic Security 1,130,066        
     Office of Pollution Control 1,171,992        
     Trial courts 69,959             
     Housing and Finance 175,000           
     Education 277,794           
     State 506                  
     Peace Officers Board 33,245             
     Corrections 5,663,035        
     Veterans Affairs 37,036             

    Total State $ 38,288,008      
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Governmental
Funds

Grants (Continued)
  Federal 
    Department of
      Agriculture $ 3,147,607        
      Housing and Urban Development 2,718,474        
      Justice 257,921           
      Labor 1,415,060        
      Transportation 10,100,805      
      National Foundation on Arts and Humanities 16,701             
      Environmental Protection Agency 129,946           
      Education 103,388           
      Health and Human Services 26,333,236      
      Homeland Security 1,036,000        

    Total Federal $ 45,259,138      

    Total State and Federal Grants $ 83,547,146      

      Total Intergovernmental Revenue $ 139,767,926    
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Agriculture
  Direct
    Farm and Ranch Lands Protection Program 10.913 $ 397,438            $ -                    
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Health
    Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women,
     Infants, and Children 10.557 934,701            -                    
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Education
    School Breakfast Program 10.553 14,543              -                    
    National School Lunch Program 10.555 19,803              -                    
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Human Services
    State Administrative Matching Grants for Supplemental 
      Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 1,781,122         -                    

    Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 3,147,607         $ -                    

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
  Direct
    Community Development Block Grant 14.218 $ 1,580,620         $ 1,580,620         
    Supportive Housing Demonstrative Program 14.235 411,502            -                    

HOME I t t P t hi P 14 239 726 352 726 352    HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 726,352           726,352          

    Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 2,718,474         $ 2,306,972         

U.S. Department of Justice
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Public Safety
    Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant 16.523 $ 96,623              $ -                    
  Direct
    Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant 16.710 1,419                -                    
    State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) 16.606 49,283              -                    
    Byrne Formula Grant Program 16.579 110,596            -                    

    Total U.S. Department of Justice $ 257,921            $ -                    

U.S. Department of Labor
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Employment
   and Economic Development
    Unemployment Insurance - Grants to States 17.225 $ 9,423                $ -                    
    WIA Adult Program 17.258 189,790            -                    
    WIA Youth Activities 17.259 340,055            -                    
    WIA Dislocated Workers 17.260 875,792            -                    

    Total U.S. Department of Labor $ 1,415,060         $ -                    
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Transportation
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Transportation
    Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 $ 9,602,606         $ -                    
    Minimum Penalties for Repeat Offenders for Driving While Intoxicated 20.608 8,453                $ -                    
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Public Safety
    State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 3,587                -                    
  Passed Through Met Council
    Federal Transit Capital Assistance Grant 20.500 486,159            $ -                    

    Total U.S. Department of Transportation $ 10,100,805       $ -                    

U.S. National Foundation on Arts and Humanities
  Passed through Minnesota Department of Education
    Grants to States 45.310 $ 16,701              $ -                    

U.S. Department of Environmental Protection Agency
  Passed through Minnesota Pollution Control Agency
    Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants 66.460 $ 129,946            $ -                    

U S D t t f Ed tiU.S. Department of Education
  Direct
    Special Education-Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities 84.181 $ 103,388            $ -                    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Health
    Immunization Research, Demonstration, Public Information and 
      Education-Training and Clinical Skills Improvement Projects 93.185 $ 45,809              $ -                    
    Immunization Grants 93.268 25,000              -                    
    Centers for Disease Control and Prevention - Investigations
     and Technical Assistance 93.283 559,486            -                    
    Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 325,367            -                    
    Refugee and Entrant Assistance 93.576 8,002                -                    
    State Children's Insurance Program 93.767 1,239                -                    
    Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant 93.994 284,420            -                    
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Human Services
    Family Preservation and Support Services 93.556 201,707            -                    
    Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 2,847,134         -                    
    Child Support Enforcement Title IV-D 93.563 7,529,773         -                    
    Refugee and Entrance Assistance - State Administered Programs 93.566 1,712                -                    
    Block Grant - Child Care and Development 93.575 5,598,344         -                    
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DAKOTA COUNTY
 MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (Cont.)
    Community Based Child Abuse Prevention Grant 93.590 $ 59,399              $ -                    
    Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 1,291,506         -                    
    Social Services Block Grant Title XX 93.667 1,418,611         -                    
    Chafee Foster Care Independence Program 93.674 86,815              -                    
    Medical Assistance Program 93.778 5,613,524         -                    
    Block Grant for Community Mental Health Services 93.958 279,110            -                    
    Block Grant for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 51,626              -                    
  Direct
    Transitional Living for Homeless Youth 93.550 104,652            -                    

    Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services $ 26,333,236       $ -                    

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Public Safety
    Boating Safety Financial Assistance 97.012 $ 12,130              $ -                    
    Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 1,023,870         -                    

    Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security $ 1,036,000         $ -                    

      Total Federal Awards $ 45,259,138     $ 2,306,972       

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

1.  The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of federal award programs expended by Dakota County.
     The County's reporting entity is defined in Note I to the basic financial statements.

2.  The expenditures on this schedule are on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

3.  Pass-through grant numbers were not assigned by the pass-through agencies.
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Statistical Section 
 
 

This part of Dakota County’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, 
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the County’s overall 
financial health. 
 
Contents            
            Page 
 
Financial Trends                       111 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County’s 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity          120 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the 
county’s ability to generate its property taxes. 
 
Debt Capacity           124 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability to the 
County’s current levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ability to issue additional debt 
in the future. 
 
Demographic and Economic Information        127 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
the environment within which the County’s financial activities take place and to help make 
comparisons over time and with other governments. 
 
Operating Information          129 
These schedules contain information about the County’s operations and resources to help 
the reader understand how the County provides the activities it performs. 
 
 
 
 
Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.  The County implemented 
GASB Statement 34 in 2001; therefore, schedules that present entity-wide information 
begin in that year. 
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Primary Government
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Governmental Activities
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 314,326,218$       335,676,562$       321,795,149$       362,641,327$       382,932,632$       395,989,603$       435,373,306$       502,664,473$       
Restricted 341,040                204,204                22,337,752           20,087,946           4,213,806             12,634,717           7,134,394             8,289,724             
Unrestricted 173,739,229         178,363,479         185,637,223         168,674,094         187,453,538         195,395,365         208,158,550         188,220,596         

Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities 488,406,487         514,244,245         529,770,124         551,403,367         574,599,976         604,019,685         650,666,250         699,174,793         

Business-Type Activities
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 13,605                  5,442                    -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Restricted 314,166                280,606                267,292                273,787                257,526                244,026                217,240                197,467                
Unrestricted -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total Net Assets - Business-Type Activities 327,771                286,048                267,292                273,787                257,526                244,026                217,240                197,467                

Total Primary Government
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 314,339,823         335,682,004         321,795,149         362,641,327         382,932,632         395,989,603         435,373,306         502,664,473         
Restricted 655,206                484,810                22,605,044           20,361,733           4,471,332             12,878,743           7,351,634             8,487,191             
Unrestricted 173,739,229         178,363,479         185,637,223         168,674,094         187,453,538         195,395,365         208,158,550         188,220,596         

Total Net Assets - Primary Government 488,734,258$       514,530,293$       530,037,416$       551,677,154$       574,857,502$       604,263,711$       650,883,490$       699,372,260$       

Components Units
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Community Development Agency
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 34,930,672$         46,611,279$         49,981,807$         50,062,357$         54,523,397$         56,508,944$         58,430,590$         62,660,057$         

Dakota County, Minnesota

Net Assets by Component

p
Restricted 9,919,536             14,465,003           18,993,737           22,552,239           25,110,847           29,434,579           34,964,470           40,927,194           
Unrestricted 43,047,666           27,133,258           30,373,937           37,124,838           38,616,727           45,848,454           50,752,896           55,136,226           

Total Net Assets - Community Development Agency 87,897,874$         88,209,540$         99,349,481$         109,739,434$       118,250,971$       131,791,977$       144,147,956$       158,723,477$       

Vermillion River Watershed
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
Restricted -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Unrestricted -                        -                        -                        -                        228,945                452,087                836,040                1,172,206             

Total Net Assets - Vermillion River Watershed -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      228,945$              452,087$              836,040$              1,172,206$           

The County implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2001.  Therefore, years prior to 2001 are not available.

Unaudited
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Expenses 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Primary Government

Governmental Activities
General Government 37,908,226$               45,342,380$               52,882,439$               49,207,103$               50,717,612$               49,730,842$               55,472,603$               58,446,661$               
Public Safety 26,970,843                 30,523,481                 33,079,209                 30,944,558                 32,521,143                 34,919,409                 34,912,593                 37,499,603                 
Highways and Streets 15,966,207                 17,350,300                 14,549,489                 16,304,900                 26,006,634                 20,420,856                 20,277,098                 20,428,908                 
Sanitation 4,448,583                   4,396,621                   4,322,330                   4,604,620                   4,304,756                   4,011,215                   3,680,402                   3,498,126                   
Human Services 74,389,731        82,897,196                 82,227,949                 76,680,727                 85,113,843                 89,579,810                 94,635,381                 94,467,561                 
Health 9,738,114         11,065,807                 11,885,420                 11,390,101                 12,178,902                 11,743,390                 13,431,633                 14,441,444                 
Culture and Recreation 13,728,425        15,499,000                 15,102,985                 15,802,865                 15,208,101                 16,641,571                 17,447,398                 17,160,436                 
Conservation of Natural Resources 1,308,699         1,281,240                   1,441,578                   634,311                      603,508                      5,061,173                   4,819,932                   4,783,651                   
Economic Development 6,670,268         7,070,031                   6,330,521                   7,609,962                   6,102,141                   7,760,382                   12,810,832                 7,712,727                   
Interest 3,468,103         3,206,856                   3,732,525                   4,178,776                   3,644,666                   4,317,700                   5,509,766                   4,910,143                   

Total Governmental Activities 194,597,199               218,632,912               225,554,445               217,357,923               236,401,306               244,186,348               262,997,638               263,349,260               

Business-Type Activities
Geographic Information Systems 51,121                        65,052                        59,429                        45,355                        51,166                        42,591                        47,012                        40,082                        

Total Business-Type Activities 51,121                        65,052                        59,429                        45,355                        51,166                        42,591                        47,012                        40,082                        

Total Primary Government Expenses 194,648,320$             218,697,964$             225,613,874$             217,403,278$             236,452,472$             244,228,939$             263,044,650$             263,389,342$             

Dakota County, Minnesota

Changes in Net Assets

Program Revenues 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Primary Government

Governmental Activities
Fees, fines, charges and other:

General Government 6,716,442$                 7,705,629$                 10,113,324$               9,781,610$                 8,926,807$                 9,615,154$                 11,007,470$               7,867,792$                 
Public Safety 1,902,074 1,977,624                   2,333,435                   2,663,212                   2,554,680                   2,922,742                   2,808,252                   2,731,099                   
Highways and Streets 651,390 708,101                      792,432                      847,893                      999,754                      1,203,304                   1,281,339                   1,495,081                   
Sanitation 5,161,588 5,179,568                   5,146,562                   4,981,322                   4,581,103                   5,648,372                   5,818,423                   6,222,558                   
Human Services 25,707,768 29,781,624                 38,213,785                 34,389,557                 40,411,091                 35,103,513                 46,166,824                 2,782,157                   
Health 3,376,751 5,150,701                   5,641,178                   4,666,247                   5,048,774                   3,788,860                   4,947,124                   5,772,599                   
Culture and Recreation 866,664 728,329                      922,694                      1,180,256                   1,316,474                   1,343,261                   1,606,090                   1,622,497                   
Conservation of Natural Resources -                             -                             94,167                        65,666                        37,789                        60,388                        51,076                        43,906                        
Economic Development -                             182,944                      -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Interest -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Governmental Program Revenues 44,382,677                 51,414,520                 63,257,577                 58,575,763                 63,876,472                 59,685,594                 73,686,598                 28,537,689                 

Business-Type Activities
Geographic Information Systems 38,194                        23,329                        40,673                        51,850                        34,905                        29,091                        20,226                        20,309                        

Total Business-Type Program Revenues 38,194                        23,329                        40,673                        51,850                        34,905                        29,091                        20,226                        20,309                        

Total Primary Government Program Revenues 44,420,871$               51,437,849$               63,298,250$               58,627,613$               63,911,377$               59,714,685$               73,706,824$               28,557,998$               
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Dakota County, Minnesota

Changes in Net Assets
Program Revenues 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Primary Government
Governmental Activities
Operating Grants and Contributions:

General Government 2,762,186$                 3,983,546$                 565,292$                    1,411,311$                 1,909,154$                 628,801$                    853,773$                    3,893,517$                 
Public Safety 7,293,336 7,938,187                   9,847,307                   6,763,295                   6,953,692                   12,777,168                 8,395,227                   8,533,620                   
Highways and Streets 13,764,056 7,093,068                   2,888,460                   5,013,888                   3,439,157                   5,233,333                   7,255,780                   6,054,166                   
Sanitation 1,199,240 1,253,470                   1,133,123                   1,154,986                   1,014,073                   1,016,810                   2,605                          8,341                          
Human Services 18,960,120 20,533,390                 17,388,737                 18,634,901                 19,492,199                 21,047,402                 23,115,310                 59,829,926                 
Health 8,758,860 10,011,695                 10,070,275                 3,864,966                   3,819,458                   3,914,089                   3,793,765                   5,458,305                   
Culture and Recreation 2,424,371 3,415,582                   363,748                      842,998                      3,239,484                   434,868                      4,499,611                   10,126,045                 
Conservation of Natural Resources 391,425 109,003                      90,785                        37,248                        133,592                      96,522                        5,412,063                   2,153,127                   
Economic Development 5,934,463 5,607,121                   6,403,015                   7,894,503                   6,935,833                   7,905,728                   8,681,447                   7,252,218                   
Interest -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Governmental Program Revenues 61,488,057                 59,945,062                 48,750,742                 45,618,096                 46,936,642                 53,054,721                 62,009,581                 103,309,265               

Business-Type Activities
Geographic Information Systems -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Business-Type Program Revenues -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Primary Government Program Revenues 61,488,057$               59,945,062$               48,750,742$               45,618,096$               46,936,642$               53,054,721$               62,009,581$               103,309,265$             

Program Revenues 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Primary Government

Governmental Activities
Capital Grants and Contributions:

General Government 689,071$                    120,838$                    -$                            -$                            -$                            964,221$                    164,670$                    -$                            
Public Safety -                                 68,978                        439,703                      346,184                      132,576                      -                             -                             -                             
Highways and Streets 12,429,667                 18,622,321                 10,519,399                 14,927,590                 15,615,808                 15,362,204                 15,923,156                 24,648,824                 
Sanitation -                                 -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Human Services -                                 -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Health -                                 -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Culture and Recreation -                                 1,354,772                   622,287                      -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Conservation of Natural Resources -                                 -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Economic Development -                                 -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Interest -                                 -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Governmental Program Revenues 13,118,738                 20,166,909                 11,581,389                 15,273,774                 15,748,384                 16,326,425                 16,087,826                 24,648,824                 

Business-Type Activities
Geographic Information Systems -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Business-Type Program Revenues -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Primary Government Program Revenues 13,118,738$               20,166,909$               11,581,389$               15,273,774$               15,748,384$               16,326,425$               16,087,826$               24,648,824$               
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Dakota County, Minnesota

Changes in Net Assets
Net (Expense) Revenue (a) 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Primary Government
Governmental Activities

General Government (27,740,527)$              (33,532,367)$              (42,203,823)$              (38,014,182)$              (39,881,651)$              (38,522,666)$              (43,446,690)$              (46,685,352)$              
Public Safety (17,775,433)                (20,538,692)                (20,458,764)                (21,171,867)                (22,880,195)                (19,219,499)                (23,709,114)                (26,234,884)                
Highways and Streets 10,878,906                 9,073,190                   (349,198)                     4,484,471                   (5,951,915)                  1,377,985                   4,183,177                   11,769,163                 
Sanitation 1,912,245                   2,036,417                   1,957,355                   1,531,688                   1,290,420                   2,653,967                   2,140,626                   2,732,773                   
Human Services (29,721,843)                (32,582,182)                (26,625,427)                (23,656,269)                (25,210,553)                (33,428,895)                (25,353,247)                (31,855,478)                
Health 2,397,497                   4,096,589                   3,826,033                   (2,858,888)                  (3,310,670)                  (4,040,441)                  (4,690,744)                  (3,210,540)                  
Culture and Recreation (10,437,390)                (10,000,317)                (13,194,256)                (13,779,611)                (10,652,143)                (14,863,442)                (11,341,697)                (5,411,894)                  
Conservation of Natural Resources (917,274)                     (1,172,237)                  (1,256,626)                  (531,397)                     (432,127)                     (4,904,263)                  643,207                      (2,586,618)                  
Economic Development (735,805)                     (1,279,966)                  72,494                        284,541                      833,692                      145,346                      (4,129,385)                  (460,509)                     
Interest (3,468,103)                  (3,206,856)                  (3,732,525)                  (4,178,776)                  (3,644,666)                  (4,317,700)                  (5,509,766)                  (4,910,143)                  

Total Governmental Net (Expense) Revenue (75,607,727)                (87,106,421)                (101,964,737)              (97,890,290)                (109,839,808)              (115,119,608)              (111,213,633)              (106,853,482)              

Business-Type Activities
Geographic Information Systems (12,927)                       (41,723)                       (18,756)                       6,495                          (16,261)                       (13,500)                       (26,786)                       (19,773)                       

Total Business-Type Net (Expense) Revenue (12,927)                       (41,723)                       (18,756)                       6,495                          (16,261)                       (13,500)                       (26,786)                       (19,773)                       

Total Primary Government Net (Expense) Revenue (75,620,654)$              (87,148,144)$              (101,983,493)$            (97,883,795)$              (109,856,069)$            (115,133,108)$            (111,240,419)$            (106,873,255)$            

General Revenues
Primary Government 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Governmental Activities
Property Taxes 88,875,021$               85,709,861$               92,595,635$               97,937,477$               104,106,046$             109,728,835$             115,987,757$             121,557,986$             
Gravel Taxes -                             -                             446,802                      524,688                      469,396                      447,678                      384,320                      356,562                      
Mortgage Registry and Deed Tax 1 129 220 885 223 909 765 648 912 599 797 431 561Mortgage Registry and Deed Tax -                            -                           1,129,220                 885,223                    909,765                     648,912                    599,797                    431,561                    
Tax Increment Financing -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             - -                             
Payment in lieu of Tax -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             14,895                        1,531,322                   1,684,323                   
Grants and Contributions (unrestricted) 13,777,771        21,112,656                 18,263,496                 15,413,836                 19,455,306                 19,135,474                 37,065                        34,890                        
Gift and Contributions (unrestricted) 19,274              74,068                        74,062                        28,810                        50,934                        -                             18,642,707                 15,950,219                 
Investment Income 12,441,705        6,643,048                   3,905,500                   3,391,277                   7,216,182                   13,224,287                 18,436,886                 13,764,069                 
Miscellaneous 4,515,449         3,841,039                   687,389                      1,270,329                   1,479,465                   1,655,869                   2,032,541                   1,516,087                   
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 348,402            487,717                      388,512                      71,893                        70,023                        16,267                        35,653                        66,328                        
Special items -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             (160,750)                     - -

Governmental Activities General Revenues 119,977,622               117,868,389               117,490,616               119,523,533               133,757,117               144,711,467               157,688,048               155,362,025               

Total Change in Net Assets - Governmental Activities 44,369,895                 30,761,968                 15,525,879                 21,633,243                 23,917,309                 29,591,859                 46,474,415                 48,508,543                 

Business-Type Activities
Total General Revenues - Business-Type Activities -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Change in Net Assets - Business-Type Activities (12,927)                       (41,723)                       (18,756)                       6,495                          (16,261)                       (13,500)                       (26,786)                       (19,773)                       

Total Change in Net Assets - Primary Government 44,356,968$               30,720,245$               15,507,123$               21,639,738$               23,901,048$               29,578,359$               46,447,629$               48,488,770$               

 

The County implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2001.  Therefore, years prior to 2001 are not available.

(a) Net revenue (expense) is the difference between the expenses and program revenue of a function or program.  It indicates the degree to which a function or program is supported with its own fees and program-specific grants 
versus its reliance upon funding from taxes and other government revenues.  Numbers in parentheses indicate that expenses were greater than program revenues and therefore general revenue were needed to finance that function 
or program.  Numbers without parentheses mean that program revenues were more than sufficient to cover expenses.
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Expenses 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Component Unit
Community Development Agency 24,488,706$              26,349,314$              29,534,299$              31,257,253$              32,973,947$              32,757,874$              34,009,760$              34,618,320$              
Vermillion River Watershed -                            -                            325,209                     759,557                     1,157,625                  1,017,956                  

Total Component Unit 24,488,706                26,349,314                29,534,299                31,257,253                33,299,156                33,517,431                35,167,385                35,636,276                

Program Revenues

Component Unit
Community Development Agency 24,307,971                26,533,216                34,830,910                34,263,892                33,470,667                36,142,256                34,403,242                36,440,889                
Vermillion River Watershed -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            434,567                     196,434                     

Total Component Unit 24,307,971                26,533,216                34,830,910                34,263,892                33,470,667                36,142,256                34,837,809                36,637,323                

General Revenues - Community Development Agency 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Property Taxes 9,977,930$                5,020,422$                3,339,917$                4,694,249$                5,278,362$                6,097,282$                6,742,029$                7,512,146$                
Gravel Taxes -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Mortgage Registry and Deed Tax -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Tax Increment Financing -                            -                            1,903,356                  2,047,034                  2,154,606                  2,792,582                  3,034,382                  3,288,340                  
Grants and Contributions (unrestricted) -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Gift and Contributions (unrestricted) -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Investment Income 1,838,281           677,896                     411,190                     180,027                     407,008                     1,262,710                  2,186,086                  1,952,466                  
Miscellaneous 494,811              198,735                     -                            -                            -                            4,050                         -                            -                            
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 7,163                  (410,098)                    188,867                     462,004                     174,841                     -                            -                            -                            

Total General Revenues - Community Development Agency 12,318,185                5,486,955                  5,843,330                  7,383,314                  8,014,817                  10,156,624                11,962,497                12,752,952                

Total Change in Net Assets - Community Development Agency 12,137,450$              5,670,857$                11,139,941$              10,389,953$              8,511,537$                13,541,006$              12,355,979$              14,575,521$              

Dakota County, Minnesota

Changes in Net Assets - Component Units
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Dakota County, Minnesota

Changes in Net Assets - Component Units

General Revenues - Vermillion River Watershed 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Property Taxes -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          376,609$                   886,480$                   982,967$                   -$                          
Gravel Taxes -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            1,032,731                  
Mortgage Registry and Deed Tax -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Tax Increment Financing -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Grants and Contributions (unrestricted) -                            -                            -                            -                            40,391                       84,622                       85,293                       88,235                       
Gift and Contributions (unrestricted) -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Investment Income -                            -                            -                            -                            2,787                         11,595                       31,526                       36,722                       
Miscellaneous -                            -                            -                            -                            24                              2                               7,225                         -                            
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Total General Revenues - Vermillion River Watershed -                            -                            -                            -                            419,811                     982,699                     1,107,011                  1,157,688                  

Total Change in Net Assets - Vermillion River Watershed -                            -                            -                            -                            94,602                       223,142                     383,953                     336,166                     

Total Change in Net Assets - Component Units 12,137,450$              5,670,857$                11,139,941$              10,389,953$              8,606,139$                13,764,148$              12,739,932$              14,911,687$              

(a) Net revenue (expense) is the difference between the expenses and program 
revenue of a function or program.  It indicates the degree to which a function 
or program is supported with its own fees and program-specific grants versus 
its reliance upon funding from taxes and other government revenues.  Numbers 
in parentheses indicate that expenses were greater than program revenues and 
therefore general revenue were needed to finance that function or program.  
Numbers without parentheses mean that program revenues were more than 
sufficient to cover expenses.
 
 
The County implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2001.  Therefore, years prior to 2001 are not available.
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
General Fund

Reserved 409,520$                     419,928$                     23,064,024$                22,341,956$                16,038,637$                13,200,485$                15,182,375$                13,449,225$                
Unreserved 66,780,697                  65,136,385                  63,799,931                  64,530,381                  71,088,338                  80,646,902                  81,962,712                  67,923,464                  

Total General Fund 67,190,217$                65,556,313$                86,863,955$                86,872,337$                87,126,975$                93,847,387$                97,145,087$                81,372,689$                

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved 21,158,832$                12,753,392$                27,733,952$                17,247,019$                24,848,723$                18,311,212$                46,784,920$                41,065,067$                
Unreserved reported in:

Special Revenue Funds 58,765,837       70,426,604                  73,353,496                  76,322,254                  76,161,184                  78,958,047                  80,887,248                  77,377,250                  
Debt Services (960)                  -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Capital Projects 37,085,908       21,998,679                  15,914,591                  22,917,240                  26,712,667                  29,997,591                  27,661,764                  19,379,182                  

Total Unreserved 95,850,785                  92,425,283                  89,268,087                  99,239,494                  102,873,851                108,955,638                108,549,012                96,756,432                  
Total All Other Governmental Funds 117,009,617$              105,178,675$              117,002,039$              116,486,513$              127,722,574$              127,266,850$              155,333,932$              137,821,499$              

The County implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2001.  Therefore, years prior to 2001 are not available.

Dakota County, Minnesota

Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
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Revenues 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Taxes 78,520,118$                85,856,927$                94,143,653$                99,225,750$                105,343,232$              110,455,812$              118,197,095$              123,486,583$              
Licenses and Permits 632,217                       781,615                       660,334                       781,824                       871,760                       977,836                       1,046,379                    954,087                       
Intergovernmental 84,847,328                  96,309,522                  83,481,558                  74,459,048                  83,801,670                  84,160,902                  100,882,470                139,767,926                
Charges for Services 44,817,714                  52,003,203                  60,161,179                  60,199,754                  64,104,712                  66,063,636                  72,759,043                  30,198,174                  
Fines and Forfeits 1,415,946                    1,539,738                    1,509,902                    795,137                       98,247                         96,947                         123,472                       114,356                       
Gifts and Contributions 6,680                           74,068                         74,062                         28,810                         43,238                         33,161                         37,065                         34,890                         
Insurance Proceeds 7,569                           3,268                           
Sales 324,019                       300,067                       
Interest on Investments 12,311,038                  6,643,048                    3,685,371                    3,171,148                    7,216,182                    13,000,684                  18,208,836                  13,536,019                  
Miscellaneous 4,283,786                    3,517,103                    4,204,157                    4,146,032                    4,221,623                    4,561,191                    3,941,346                    5,792,583                    

Total Revenues 227,166,415$              247,028,559$              247,920,216$              242,807,503$              265,700,664$              279,350,169$              315,195,706$              313,884,618$              

Expenditures 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Current

General Government 38,897,903                  45,203,995$                47,253,568$                45,270,908$                46,495,009$                53,676,685$                61,188,552$                63,074,376$                
Public Safety 27,040,968                  30,693,607                  33,246,286                  31,239,407                  32,866,822                  35,053,472                  35,291,843                  36,927,178                  
Highways and Streets 36,565,271                  29,165,140                  27,225,783                  29,712,978                  43,262,177                  29,351,870                  43,854,429                  56,543,277                  
Sanitation 4,435,314                    4,421,074                    5,221,481                    7,063,958                    7,095,465                    7,216,642                    7,147,093                    6,660,486                    
Human Services 73,676,674                  82,929,871                  83,077,177                  79,078,525                  87,468,346                  92,009,151                  96,888,230                  96,753,204                  
Health 10,036,933                  11,929,348                  11,812,290                  11,380,088                  12,194,868                  11,769,743                  13,389,063                  14,344,511                  
Culture and Recreation 446,817                       19,110,237                  16,957,429                  14,968,314                  16,093,344                  16,463,667                  18,550,559                  32,511,779                  
Conservation 1,375,803                    1,454,163                    1,407,858                    643,200                       5,211,738                    5,053,963                    4,814,414                    4,739,047                    
Economic Development 6,484,780                    7,020,420                    7,922,971                    7,610,568                    6,083,685                    7,766,719                    13,028,818                  7,652,018                    

Capital Outlay 29,242,055                  20,646,814                  7,586,673                    5,365,162                    4,271,226                    11,561,479                  9,224,104                    8,561,029                    
Debt Service 8,415,445                    - - - - - - -

Principal Retirement - 5,424,442                    4,294,871                    6,708,778                    6,920,000                    7,185,000                    7,825,000                    14,155,000                  
Interest - 3,284,260                    3,075,658                    4,424,848                    3,931,502                    4,096,008                    4,952,325                    5,103,038                    

d C 12 23 68 489 26 699 191 801

Governmental Funds

Dakota County, Minnesota

Changes in Fund Balances

Bond Issuance Costs - -                             125,235                     - 68,489                        26,699                       191,801                     -
Administrative Charges - 500                              - - - - - 4,900                           

Total Expenditures 236,617,963$              261,283,871$              249,207,280$              243,466,734$              271,962,671$              281,231,098$              316,346,231$              347,029,843$              

Excess of Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures (9,451,548)$                 (14,255,312)$               (1,287,064)$                 (659,231)$                    (6,262,007)$                 (1,880,929)$                 (1,150,525)$                 (33,145,225)$               

Other Financing Sources 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Transfers In 13,231,810               14,897,647$                8,998,226$                  9,649,930$                  14,557,146$                11,751,473$                14,442,981$                23,917,624$                
Transfers Out (13,477,120)              (14,897,647)                 (8,998,226)                   (9,649,930)                   (14,557,146)                 (11,751,473)                 (14,442,981)                 (23,917,624)                 
Bonds Issued 34,555,300               32,335,000                  - 16,800,000                  7,300,000                    
Proceeds from sale of  refunding bonds 31,695,000                  -
Premium/(Discount) on Bond Issuance 2,044,813                    - (18,248)                        26,620                         88,934                         -
Proceeds from Sale of Capital 22,467                862,649                       100,387                       77,370                         1,792,420                    583,421                       710,185                       75,589                         

Total Other Financing Sources 34,332,457$                862,649$                     34,480,200$                77,370$                       18,574,172$                7,910,041$                  32,494,119$                75,589$                       

Net Change in Fund Balance 24,880,909$                (13,392,663)$               33,193,136$                (581,861)$                    12,312,165$                6,029,112$                  31,343,594$                (33,069,636)$               

Debt Service Expenditures as 
Percent of Non-Capital Expenditures 4.48% 3.82% 3.36% 5.08% 4.71% 4.59% 4.89% 7.08%

The County implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2001.  Therefore, years prior to 2001 are not available.
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Total 
Fiscal Direct
Year Assessed* Estimated Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated County

Assessed Value Market Value Value Market Value Value Market Value Tax Rate
1999 307,887,415$  18,391,607,900$  8,749,422$      262,065,900$  316,636,837$  18,653,673,800$    1.7 0.28322
2000 348,016,071 20,556,037,138 8,381,597 252,910,300 356,397,668 20,808,947,438 1.7 0.27247
2001 272,591,835 22,921,579,100 5,089,348 260,367,400 277,681,183 23,181,946,500 1.2 0.25320
2002 303,246,273 25,936,773,800 5,228,097 267,987,400 308,474,370 26,204,761,200 1.2 0.33102
2003 338,159,517 29,375,690,500 5,544,992 284,642,600 343,704,509 29,660,333,100 1.2 0.32463
2004 379,955,145 33,272,415,600 5,859,007 300,730,500 385,814,152 33,573,146,100 1.1 0.30300
2005 427,133,158 37,531,168,000 5,875,141 302,403,100 433,008,299 37,833,571,100 1.1 0.28267
2006 471,234,957 41,167,642,300 6,196,860 319,020,400 477,431,817 41,486,662,700 1.2 0.26318
2007 495,383,991 43,049,023,300 6,286,380 324,904,600 501,670,371 43,373,927,900 1.2 0.25127
2008 499,594,005 43,061,778,400 6,868,328 355,081,700 506,462,333 43,416,860,100 1.2 0.02158

Total Estimated
Market Value

Dakota County, Minnesota
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

% of Total
TotalPersonal PropertyReal Property

LAST TEN YEARS

Assessed to

*Valuations are determined as of January 1 of the year preceding the tax collection year.   Amounts are shown for the year in which taxes are payable.
Assessed value is prior to Fiscal Disparity and Tax Increment District Adjustments.
Total County Direct Tax Rate available only in %

10

20

30

40

50

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

B
ill

io
ns

 $

Estimated Market Value-Real and Personal Property

Unaudited
120



Governments 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
COUNTY

Dakota County 0.28322 0.27247 0.25320 0.33102 0.32463 0.30300 0.28267 0.26318 0.25127 0.25184
CITIES

Apple Valley 0.32287 0.29019 0.31320 0.45942 0.41578 0.39610 0.36753 0.35690 0.34891 0.35537
Burnsville 0.29548 0.29075 0.29204 0.43296 0.41074 0.38928 0.38004 0.35414 0.34564 0.35005
Coates 0.20222 0.22560 0.23929 0.28405 0.25287 0.23476 0.19117 0.17908 0.16971 0.15252
Eagan 0.24682 0.24458 0.23441 0.31715 0.29912 0.28702 0.28186 0.26704 0.25232 0.25892
Farmington 0.33067 0.30592 0.29953 0.48892 0.46894 0.41174 0.43767 0.42770 0.41883 0.43821
Hampton 0.14895 0.12822 0.11688 0.24767 0.25138 0.24248 0.22029 0.20224 0.24064 0.22742
Hastings 0.41867 0.38088 0.33147 0.58661 0.50077 0.50110 0.50515 0.50010 0.49235 0.49475
Inver Grove Heights 0.25733 0.25215 0.25098 0.44637 0.40890 0.39904 0.37347 0.35546 0.36514 0.37403
Lakeville 0.19119 0.19466 0.20079 0.34545 0.32944 0.30050 0.31326 0.31610 0.31583 0.34195
Lilydale 0.16181 0.15629 0.15112 0.21838 0.24679 0.28927 0.29238 0.36721 0.41386 0.41239
Mendota 0.48740 0.47031 0.42942 0.58069 0.57538 0.52357 0.49717 0.38234 0.42969 0.37178
Mendota Heights 0.21099 0.20860 0.19392 0.30180 0.28287 0.27030 0.26898 0.28027 0.27633 0.24142
Miesville 0.14471 0.17290 0.15381 0.24843 0.29835 0.26124 0.26831 0.24494 0.21512 0.23654
New Trier 0.19238 0.19360 0.19621 0.22208 0.22851 0.22851 0.26535 0.28778 0.24418 0.32119
Northfield 0.31889 0.31583 0.33565 0.41524 0.39833 0.38841 0.37004 0.34227 0.35691 0.36648
Randolph 0.14878 0.14761 0.12746 0.19517 0.17541 0.16142 0.09358 0.11127 0.11643 0.12512
Rosemount 0.41710 0.39335 0.36553 0.59546 0.57123 0.52368 0.46041 0.43755 0.42521 0.42440
South St. Paul 0.29827 0.27842 0.28244 0.44889 0.41264 0.39452 0.36913 0.34999 0.34143 0.36142
Sunfish Lake 0.15191 0.14773 0.13593 0.21436 0.20896 0.20377 0.18259 0.16817 0.18090 0.17847
Vermillion 0.26069 0.20246 0.21928 0.42449 0.54447 0.51224 0.44767 0.40697 0.32507 0.32429
West St. Paul 0.24823 0.25012 0.25205 0.44516 0.38716 0.41679 0.42289 0.42671 0.42082 0.43706

TOWNSHIPS
Castle Rock 0.20230 0.20559 0.19025 0.23315 0.21069 0.17038 0.15468 0.12776 0.11738 0.11215
Douglas 0.14725 0.14056 0.18049 0.29011 0.26932 0.23536 0.22325 0.18861 0.20097 0.18389
Empire 0.25124 0.29121 0.34230 0.38108 0.38114 0.30439 0.29553 0.24473 0.28244 0.25452
Eureka 0.17468 0.13422 0.15167 0.20492 0.18955 0.18350 0.18655 0.16951 0.18163 0.17001
Greenvale 0.08066 0.08847 0.08789 0.13889 0.13036 0.13396 0.13007 0.13739 0.13014 0.13433
Hampton 0.10336 0.09269 0.08425 0.11031 0.1238 0.10701 0.09895 0.09222 0.10796 0.13156
Marshan 0.14398 0.15440 0.16864 0.24612 0.24535 0.19263 0.18137 0.17730 0.18121 0.17902
Nininger 0 14571 0 13124 0 13113 0 16377 0 15026 0 13109 0 11492 0 10185 0 08972 0 11577

Dakota County, Minnesota

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
TAX CAPACITY RATES

LAST TEN YEARS

Nininger 0.14571 0.13124 0.13113 0.16377 0.15026 0.13109 0.11492 0.10185 0.08972 0.11577
Randolph 0.06257 0.06017 0.06801 0.09788 0.09240 0.08128 0.07425 0.06682 0.05783 0.04988
Ravenna 0.12239 0.11073 0.11358 0.18329 0.18596 0.16694 0.16812 0.14355 0.14268 0.10474
Sciota 0.11202 0.10009 0.08882 0.12748 0.13770 0.12145 0.10836 0.14939 0.19194 0.17116
Vermillion 0.16763 0.14614 0.14587 0.21329 0.18299 0.16449 0.14339 0.12468 0.11052 0.17820
Waterford 0.08627 0.07622 0.16651 0.20588 0.11195 0.10587 0.09692 0.08685 0.08155 0.07109
SCHOOL DISTRICTS
  6 0.65111 0.56281 0.57939 0.38406 0.38735 0.29199 0.26194 0.25900 0.23765 0.27640
191 0.66096 0.53546 0.45095 0.24120 0.21226 0.18955 0.17729 0.18315 0.18185 0.19374
192 0.70405 0.63513 0.60936 0.34095 0.39614 0.35599 0.36540 0.43708 0.44190 0.45831
194 0.69452 0.58045 0.56209 0.25984 0.30962 0.26901 0.25411 0.25670 0.25252 0.26272
195 0.60772 0.81530 0.59228 0.34185 0.36679 0.29347 0.22065 0.22632 0.22492 0.19031
196 0.56311 0.53231 0.53249 0.28883 0.27638 0.26074 0.26251 0.27554 0.23607 0.21136
197 0.50659 0.44240 0.43088 0.15272 0.14401 0.12917 0.21878 0.21428 0.19838 0.18914
199 0.55610 0.43385 0.44570 0.16824 0.14565 0.10032 0.07793 0.17796 0.16607 0.19764
200 0.69188 0.54881 0.51024 0.22943 0.22906 0.22050 0.22126 0.18683 0.18157 0.16676
252 0.53785 0.57359 0.46390 0.14471 0.25253 0.23727 0.16143 0.16555 0.13827 0.20580
659 0.54553 0.53354 0.53783 0.36023 0.32944 0.33521 0.32590 0.32272 0.31463 0.29579
SPECIAL DISTRICTS
Watershed #2 0.00339 0.00288 0.00279 0.00515 0.00390 0.00390 0.00358 0.00296 0.00290 0.00448
Watershed V 0.00338 0.00203 0.00309 0.00640 0.00608 0.00603
Transit District 0.04624 0.04454 0.04424 0.01471 0.01659 0.01610 0.01464 0.01476 0.01253 0.01247
Transit Area 0.00411 0.00388 0.00402     ---     ---     ---     ---     ---     ---     ---
Mosquito Control 0.00335 0.00328 0.00312 0.00478 0.00529 0.00527 0.00545 0.00483 0.00483 0.00490
Metro Council 0.00882 0.00808 0.00782 0.01408 0.01370 0.01124 0.01010 0.00834 0.00847 0.00817
Dakota County CDA 0.00810 0.00821 0.00402 0.01598 0.01604 0.01617 0.01637 0.01615 0.01635 0.01622
Burnsville EDA     ---     ---     ---     --- 0.01222 0.01150 0.00155 0.00397 0.00615 0.00565
Hastings HRA 0.00476 0.00938 0.00796 0.01107 0.01177 0.01174 0.01207 0.01216 0.01183 0.01169
Northfield EDA 0.01616 0.01646 0.01560
Northfield HRA     ---     ---     ---     --- 0.01199 0.01397 0.01295 0.01226 0.01307 0.01268
South St Paul HRA 0.00842 0.00759 0.00798 0.01906 0.01047 0.01066 0.01015 0.01294 0.01268 0.01267
Light Transit Rail 0.00051 0.00044 0.00039 0.00066 0.00063 0.00047 0.00251 0.00208 0.00198 0.00217

The Tax Capacity Rate is determined by dividing a taxing district's property tax levy amount by the taxing district's total tax capacity.
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1999 % of Total 2008 % of Total
Tax Capacity County Tax Capacity County

Name Type of Business Value Tax Capacity Name Type of Business Value Tax Capacity

Northern States Power Co. Electric Utility $ 8,806,288 2.8 % Xcel Energy Electric Utility $ 5,504,423 1.4 %
Dakota Electric Assn. Electric Utility 3,117,859 1.0 Flint Hills Refinery 3,312,987 0.9
Burnsville Minnesota LLC Burnsville Center 2,752,500 0.9 Burnsville Minnesota LLC Burnsville Mall 2,100,000 0.5
West Publishing Co. Book Publishing 2,467,111 0.8 Dakota Electric Assn. Electric Utility 1,905,920 0.5
Great Northern Oil Co. Refinery 1,647,928 0.5 West Publishing Co. Book Publishing 1,586,874 0.4
Minnegasco Inc. Natural Gas Utility 1,147,242 0.4 Northern Natural Gas Co. Natural Gas Utility 1,163,085 0.3
AMB Property Property Mangement  1,049,926 0.3 BCBSMInc. Health Care  970,681 0.3
DDRA Community Ctrs Five LP Eagan Marketplace-Retail 934,418 0.3 AMB Property LP Burnsville Center 882,076 0.2
RLJ Properties LLC Warehouse Storage 891,915 0.3 IRET Properties Investment Real Estate 855,214 0.2
Koch Refinery Co. Refinery 875,263 0.3 Minnegasco Inc. Natural Gas Utility 851,814 0.2

Total $ 23,690,450 7.6 % Total $ 19,133,074 4.9 %

Dakota County, Minnesota

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
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Outstanding
Fiscal Total Tax Delinquent Total Delinquent
Year Levy Amount Collections Collections Taxes

1999 82,903,427$    82,177,413$    99.1 457,435$       82,634,848$    99.7 914,546$         1.1
2000 86,831,352 86,053,087 99.1 789,411 86,842,498 100.0 984,824 1.1
2001 90,675,753 89,841,347 99.1 790,525 90,631,872 100.0 968,760 1.1
2002 96,025,625 95,288,532 99.2 949,884 96,238,416 100.2 835,917 0.9
2003 101,200,325 100,375,665 99.2 871,280 101,246,945 100.0 841,405 0.8
2004 105,594,810 104,697,190 99.1 878,779 105,575,969 100.0 931,291 0.9
2005 110,227,346 109,201,094 99.1 922,621 110,123,715 99.9 1,053,565 1.0
2006 115,797,237 114,139,225 98.6 1,118,912 115,258,137 99.5 1,412,980 1.2
2007 121,561,877 119,969,277 98.7 1,444,306 121,413,583 99.9 1,660,437 1.4
2008 126,375,073 124,407,407 98.4 1,486,006 125,893,413 99.6 2,064,492 1.6

% of Total Delinquent

Dakota County, Minnesota
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN YEARS

Current Collections
% of Levy

Current
Levy

Taxes as a % of 
Current Levy
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Fiscal Less
Year Assessed Gross Bonded Debt Service Net

Assessed Population   Value  Debt Funds Bonded Debt

1999 350,520 316,636,837$   80,825,000$     33,787,335$     47,037,665$     14.86 134 0.39%
2000 357,850 356,397,668 80,050,000 1,578,827 78,471,173 22.02 219 0.60%
2001 363,509 277,681,183 74,685,000 2,115,263 72,569,737 26.13 200 0.54%
2002 368,028 308,474,370 101,670,000 1,441,409 100,228,591 32.49 272 0.72%
2003 371,759 343,705,509 97,415,000 3,910,970 93,504,030 27.20 252 0.65%
2004 376,537 385,814,152 90,715,000 3,793,808 86,921,192 22.53 231 0.57%
2005 381,027 433,008,299 100,595,000 6,071,069 94,523,931 21.83 248 0.59%
2006 385,076 477,431,817 100,710,000 6,783,501 93,926,499 19.67 244 0.57%
2007 389,418 501,670,371 124,580,000 39,109,079 85,470,921 17.04 219 0.49%
2008 390,478 506,462,333 110,425,000 33,675,182 76,749,818 15.15 197 N/A

Dakota County, Minnesota
RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN YEARS

Value

Net
Bonded
Debt 
Per

Capita

Percentage
of

Personal
Income

Ratio of Net
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Government Unit

Direct:
Dakota County $ 110,425,000 100.0 % $ 110,425,000
Underlying:
Dakota County CDA $ 493,195,876 100.0 % $ 493,195,876
City of Apple Valley 51,960,000 100.0 51,960,000
City of Burnsville 58,902,364 100.0 58,902,364
City of Eagan 22,140,000 100.0 22,140,000
City of Farmington 43,610,000 100.0 43,610,000
City of Hampton 1,945,000 100.0 1,945,000
City of Hastings 39,670,000 99.7 39,550,990
City of Inver Grove Hts 47,415,592 100.0 47,415,592
City of Lakeville 98,955,000 100.0 98,955,000
City of Lilydale 2,065,000 100.0 2,065,000
City of Mendota 43,168 100.0 43,168
City of Mendota Heights 12,935,000 100.0 12,935,000
City of Northfield 64,645,912 1.6 1,034,335
City of Rosemount 26,285,000 100.0 26,285,000
City of South St. Paul 16,430,000 100.0 16,430,000
City of Sunfish Lake 160,000 100.0 160,000
City of Vermillion 525,000 100.0 525,000
City of West St. Paul 16,246,000 100.0 16,246,000
Marshan Township 5,069 100.0 5,069
Special S.D. #6 (South St Paul) 23,080,000 100.0 23,080,000

Dakota County, Minnesota

DECEMBER 31, 2008

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT, UNDERLYING AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Applicable to Dakota County
Outstanding1

Gross GO Debt
Percent2 Amount

Special S.D. #6 (South St Paul) 23,080,000 100.0 23,080,000
Ind. S.D. #191  (Burnsville) 77,895,000 86.2 67,145,490
Ind. S.D. #192  (Farmington) 283,640,217 100.0 283,640,217
Ind. S.D. #194  (Lakeville) 188,527,299 88.4 166,658,132
Ind. S.D. #195  (Randolph) 5,410,000 100.0 5,410,000
Ind. S.D. #196  (Rosemount) 147,453,275 100.0 147,453,275
Ind. S.D. #197  (W. St. Paul) 60,250,000 100.0 60,250,000
Ind. S.D. #199  (Inver Grove Hts.) 47,530,000 100.0 47,530,000
Ind. S.D. #200  (Hastings) 39,310,000 90.0 35,379,000
Ind. S.D. #252  (Cannon Falls) 21,260,000 3.9 829,140
Ind. S.D. #659  (Northfield) 64,060,000 14.6 9,352,760

Total underlying debt $ 1,955,549,772 $ 1,780,131,408
Overlapping:  
Metropolitan Council (Pks & Solid Waste) $ 8,625,000 3 15.3 % $ 1,319,625
Metropolitan Transit Commission 190,955,000 16.7 31,889,485

Total overlapping debt $ 199,580,000 $ 33,209,110
Total debt $ 2,265,554,772 $ 1,923,765,518

1 The Gross G.O. Debt Outstanding includes that portion of debt which is secured by the authority to levy taxes on
real estate.

2 Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of property subject to taxation in overlapping unit to valuation of property
subject to taxation in reporting unit.

3 The Metropolitan Council also has outstanding $813,017,184 of general obligation sanitary sewer bonds and loans
which are supported by system revenues.
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1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Assessed Value 18,653,673,800$      20,808,947,438$      23,181,946,500$      26,204,761,200$      29,660,333,100$      33,573,146,100$      37,833,571,100$      41,486,662,700$      43,373,927,900$          43,416,860,100$          

Legal Debt Margin
Debt Limit (3% of assessed value)* 373,073,476             416,178,949             463,638,930             524,095,224             593,206,662             671,462,922             756,671,422             829,733,254             867,478,558             1,302,505,803          

Debt Applicable to limit:
General Obligation Bonds 80,825,000               80,050,000               74,685,000               101,670,000             97,415,000               90,715,000               100,595,000             100,710,000             124,580,000 110,425,000
    Less: amount reserved for repayment of
    general obligation debt (33,787,335)             (1,578,827)               (2,115,263)               (1,441,409)               (3,910,970)               (3,793,808)               (6,098,546)               (6,783,501)               (39,109,079)             (33,675,182)             

Total Debt Applicable to Limit 47,037,665               78,471,173               72,569,737               100,228,591             93,504,030               86,921,192               94,496,454               93,926,499               85,470,921               76,749,818               

Legal Debt Margin 326,035,811$           337,707,776$           391,069,193$           423,866,633$           499,702,632$           584,541,730$           662,174,968$           735,806,755$           782,007,637$           1,225,755,985$        

Total debt applicable to the limit as
a percent of debt limit 12.6% 18.9% 15.7% 19.1% 15.8% 12.9% 12.5% 11.3% 9.9% 5.9%

*Debt Limit was 2% of assessed value for years 1999 - 2007.

or a city of the first class, shall incur or be subject to a net debt in excess of two percent of the estimated market value.
Minn. Stat. Section 475.53, subd. 1 states that except as otherwise provided in Minn. Stat. Sections 474.74 to 475.51, no municipality except a school district

Dakota County, Minnesota

Legal Debt Margin
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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School
Fiscal Personal Median Enrollment
Year Population1 Income Age2 K thru 123

1999 350,520 12,116,443,000$        34,567$       32.5 71,539 1.9

2000 357,850 13,089,975,000 36,580 33.7 71,845 2.2

2001 363,509 13,372,750,000 36,788 N/A 72,818 2.8

2002 368,028 13,843,891,000 37,616 N/A 72,493 3.7

2003 371,759 14,458,266,000 38,892 N/A 74,281 3.8

2004 376,537 15,286,872,000 40,599 34.7 74,051 4.1

2005 381,027 15,918,437,000 41,778 35.2 73,031 3.5

2006 385,827 16,545,054,000 42,966 35.7 73,342 3.5

2007 389,418 17,541,174,000 45,045 35.9 75,333 4.0

2008 390,478 N/A N/A N/A N/A 6.1

Data Sources:
1 US  Bureau of Economic Analysis

2 US Dept Of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
3 State Department of Education/Minnesota Planning
4 State Department of Economic Security/Minnesota Workforce Center

Dakota County, Minnesota

Per Capita
Income   Rate4

Unemployment
Average
Annual

LAST TEN YEARS
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
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Percentage Percentage
2000 of Total County 2008 of Total County

Employer (1) Employees Employment Employer Employees Employment
West Group 5,396          2.55% Reuters Thomson West 6,000            2.73%
Blue Cross-Blue Shield 2,916          1.38% Independent School District 196 4,000            1.82%
School District #196 2,773          1.31% Blue Cross-Blue Shield 3,300            1.50%
Burnsville Center 2,950          1.39% Northwest/Delta Airlines 2,300            1.05%
UNISYS 2,150          1.02% Dakota County 1,769            0.80%
Land O lakes 2,003          0.95% Independent School District 191 1,600            0.73%
Dakota County 1,673          0.79% Lockheed Martin 1,600            0.73%
Lockheed Martin 1,600          0.76% Independent School District 194 1,596            0.73%
Independent School Distrct 194 1,488          0.70% US Postal Service 1,570            0.71%
U.S. Postal Service 1,435          0.68% Flint Hills Resources 1,200            0.55%

Total County Employment (2) 211,589      11.53% Total County Employment 220,011      11.35%

Dakota County, Minnesota

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
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1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Function/program
County Wide

County Wide 2.0 1.0 2.0
Public Service

Public Service 5.0 6.0 7.0 7.0 10.9 10.4 10.1 10.1 10.1
Assessor 41.7 38.0 38.0 38.0 38.5 37.0 37.0 37.0 37.0 38.0
Property Records 23.0 22.0 22.0 22.3 22.3 22.3 22.3 23.3 23.3
Treasurer-Auditor 51.5 35.7 34.7 34.7 34.7 27.7 27.7 28.1 28.1 51.4
Service & Licensing - 14.5 14.5 19.5 19.3 19.3 19.3 19.3 19.3 23.3
Library 153.5 146.9 147.9 147.9 148.1 141.8 142.6 148.9 148.9 158.9

Operations Management
Operations Management 37.6 36.6 38.6 42.6 43.1 41.6 45.1 46.7 48.2 63.0
Information Technology 46.0 48.0 54.0 57.0 59.0 54.3 56.3 59.3 59.3 62.3
Financial Services 33.4 28.0 29.0 29.0 32.5 32.0 31.5 30.5 30.3 29.3
OMB Division Administration - 7.3 7.3 6.3 6.9 4.9 3.0 6.0 8.0 9.0
Planning, Evaluation - 6.0 5.2 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.5 6.5

Administration
County Administration 8.5 8.0 9.8 9.0 8.3 8.0 8.5 8.0 11.0 8.0
County Board 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
County Communications - - - - - - - - - 8.0
Employee Relations 18.7 18.7 20.6 21.6 21.6 20.2 20.7 21.2 21.2 21.2

Community Services
Community Services Administration 19.3 19.3 19.0 20.0 21.0 20.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 17.0
Social Services 224.4 231.1 243.1 259.6 270.6 266.6 269.6 263.7 264.5 276.5
Employment & Economic Assistance 230.5 233.5 238.0 243.7 248.7 242.7 243.7 244.7 243.7 248.7

COUNTY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

p y
Public Health 116.5 117.2 129.1 136.0 126.3 123.1 122.9 126.8 134.0 145.9
Veterans Services 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 8.0
Community Corrections 143.6 156.2 164.1 165.8 167.8 165.8 168.5 175.3 177.3 179.0
Extension 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.3 7.3 1.5 - - - -

Public Safety
Sheriff 154.4 157.8 158.8 163.8 164.5 161.5 170.7 180.2 169.3 175.3

County Attorney
County Attorney 71.6 79.6 81.1 81.1 81.6 79.4 80.2 82.7 83.7 85.1

Courts
District Court 77.8 77.9 77.9 80.3 80.3 80.4 - - - -

Physical Development
Office of GIS - - - - 8.0 8.0 8.0 10.0 10.0 10.0
Physical Development 5.1 4.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 15.8 18.0 24.6 22.4
Transportation 76.1 78.1 80.1 82.1 83.1 82.0 85.0 86.7 87.7 83.5
Parks 51.3 54.9 56.0 56.1 58.0 54.1 43.5 45.0 47.8 48.2
Water Resources - - - - - - - - 13.3 17.2
Physical Development Planning 12.0 13.0 12.0 10.8 11.8 12.8 11.8 10.8 - -
Environmental 34.1 33.3 33.3 31.8 32.0 32.7 28.9 29.0 21.5 16.5
Survey 18.5 18.5 18.5 19.0 10.0 9.0 9.0 8.0 8.0 8.0

Total 1,672.6 1,711.6 1,764.1 1,816.3 1,837.3 1,784.6 1,722.0 1,757.3 1,768.6 1,837.3

Source:  Dakota County Departmental documents 

Unaudited
129



1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
General Government

Property Documents Recorded 129,102           100,731           131,281           161,798           221,216           151,980           138,479           113,202           107,507           90,531             
Employment Applications 861                  7,273               8,916               12,390             3,253               8,810               7,718               15,558             14,160             10,699             
County Veterans Population 28,540             28,210             29,368             27,900             32,040             31,776             30,987             31,000             30,500             29,974             
New Adult Criminal Court Cases 3,369               3,695               4,195               4,679               4,785               4,636               4,821               4,815               4,836               4,310               
Juvenile Delinquency Referrals 4,031               4,403               4,540               4,438               4,323               4,093               3,927               4,095               3,848               3,315               
Commitment Referrals 187                  174                  239                  264                  220                  232                  237                  246                  277                  258                  
Plat Reviews 167                  195                  204                  256                  249                  251                  261                  202                  157                  84                    

Public Safety
Probation Offenders Served 14,628             15,757             17,490             16,585             17,383             17,757             18,219             19,858             20,327             20,576             
Community Restoration Hours Served na na na 91,785             92,429             93,985             92,984             98,961             105,592           97,809             
Driving While Impaired Arrests 201                  149                  192                  274                  292                  193                  282                  307                  269                  249                  
Applications for Permit to Carry Handguns na na na na 1,147               572                  566                  741                  756                  1,541               
Daily Inmate Responsibility Average 186                  196                  212                  232                  251                  263                  301                  308                  334                  291                  

Highways and Streets
Fuel Used (Diesel and Unleaded) 149,214           154,117           155,700           144,360           144,126           120,560           123,601           105,096           120,086           136,865           

Sanitation
Pounds of Household Hazardous Waste Collected 986,000           955,000           966,000           1,256,000        1,356,000        1,390,000        1,484,000        1,525,000        2,150,000        3,017,291        

Human Services

Dakota County, Minnesota
Operating Indicators

By Governmental Function

Human Services
Intake and Crisis Calls 32,732             40,360             42,317             40,483             37,365             39,716             42,956             44,800             45,687             44,410             
Average Monthly # of Children in Out-of-Home Placement na na na 293                  213                  204                  220                  230                  213                  188                  
Chemical Health Referrals na na 1,407               897                  733                  696                  822                  900                  887                  922                  
Public Assistance Caseload 9,166               6,540               10,183             11,663             12,420             13,311             14,036             14,684             15,418             16,189             
Child Support Collections $36,170,159 $38,388,529 $41,914,403 $42,954,071 $44,688,674 $45,827,907 $46,592,308 $47,584,658 $47,890,683 $49,497,925
# Families served - Child Care Assistance Programs 1,920               2,105               1,865               2,108               2,116               1,783               1,763               1,878               1,900               

Health
Family Health Referrals 1,565               1,880               1,930               1,658               1,607               915                  765                  863                  812                  1,011               
WIC Clients 7,310               7,406               8,215               9,022               9,052               10,146             11,146             11,988             12,366             12,730             
Long Term Care Clients on Medicaid Waiver 795                  1,087               1,207               1,500               1,742               1,826               2,013               2,160               2,247               2,431               
Number of Confirmed Tuberculosis Cases na 7                      11                    18                    18                    20                    29                    31                    27                    21                    
Health Alerts Issued 15                    18                    21                    13                    29                    31                    27                    19                    30                    24                    
Vaccinations Administered 4,092               3,481               3,348               3,538               4,655               3,701               3,693               2,745               3,630               3,596               

Culture and Recreation
Visitors to Library  (Gate Counts) na 1,496,734        1,547,881        1,613,931        1,604,406        1,625,621        1,665,874        1,918,538        1,809,828        1,942,459        
Master Gardener Education Events na na na 4                      15                    25                    30                    87                    99                    114                  

Economic Development
Employment and Training Caseload 2,377               2,462               2,850               3,884               4,814               4,300               3,875               3,660               4,199               4,959               
Number of Adults Program Participants Placed in Employment 1,295               842                  596                  663                  1,096               1,596               920                  1,025               1,084               1,300               

Source: County Departmental budget documents, web-sites, and staff.
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2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Function/Program

General Government
Government Centers 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Public Safety
Justice Center 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Patrol Units 64 67 72 84 85 72 74 84

Highways & Streets
Bituminous (miles) 346 354.8 354.8 353.3 352.7 354.7 353.2 352.8
Concrete (miles) 1.3 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.8
Gravel (miles) 83 81 81 77.5 72.4 70.4 70.4 67.9
Bridges 29 29 29 27 27 27 29 29
Traffic signals 103 105 106 107 111 113 132 133
Culverts 49 49 49 51 51 51 51 51

Dakota County, Minnesota

CAPITAL ASSET AND INFRASTRUCTURE STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Culverts 49 49 49 51 51 51 51 51
Highway Shops 3 4 4 4 4 4 3 3

Culture & Recreation
Acreage 4509 4509 4698 4698 4698 4698 4698 5200
County Parks 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Regional parks & trails 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Libraries 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9

Data Sources:  Various county departments
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